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CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BUSINESS REVIEW AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The principal activity of the Company during the period was that of an investment company.

The Company had. ne tumover during the period to 31 December2017 and generated a profit on ordinary
activities before taxation of $52,487,648 (2016: loss of $96,767,186). The net assets position as at 31 Decembaer
2017 is $139,506,270 (2016: $87,018,622). ’

The profit arises as: a result of a part reversal of an investment impairment amounting to: $63,343,714. The
valuation of the investment is based on theé performance of its: subsidiary’s.investment and assessed in line: with

the Company’s accounting policies. The value. is.based on management forecasts and third party valuations of
the underlying hotel asset:

Asua result, the key ﬁnancral perfonﬁanoe. indicator is:

Canrying value of investment: $235,253,800 (20116: $207,191,066)

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The directors intend to wind up the Company by transférring its investment to other companies withinthe group.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As.the Company is & holding company, the principal risks facing the business is that they do not receive a
satisfactory retum on their investment. Therefore it'is dependent on the performance of-the underiying hotet
asset. .

FINAKNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Whilst its exposure to risk is largely controlled by its parent company, the Company is exposed to financial risk
as follows:

a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is. exposed 1o currency risk throughiits activities. in the United Kingdom where certain costs arise
in Pounds Sterling, whilst the Company's functional currency. is US: Doflar. The Company has: no formal policy in
respact of foreign exchange risk; however it reviews. its currency exposure on a regular basis. The foreign
currency transactions that take place In the period are insignificant

b) Liquidity risk

lqabmtles

c) Interest rater risk

All of Company’s intercompany loans payable are at a fixed rate of interest.
d) Credit risk '

The Comipany is not exposed to credit risk as it currently holds no receivables upon which such may arise.

e .

" F J.Bakhos
Director

2¢9.9..8




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Directors. submit their report and the financial statements of Constellation Barclay Invest UK Limited for the.
pericd ended 31 December 2017- . .

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results .fo_r«'t_he period are set out on page & The directors have not recommendéd a dividend.
DIRECTORS

The @irectc;rs- who served 't_hé company during thg period were as follows:

Jassim Bin Hamad Bin Jassim Bin Jabr Al-Thani
Fady‘Jan Bakhos .

GOING CONCERN

The directors.intend to wind up thé. Cdmpany by: transferring its investment to other companies within the greup.
As a result, the Company is not:a going concem and these financial statements have been prepared on & bréak-
up basis. We draw your attention to note 2 of the financial statements; which. outlines the events and condifionis.

that indicate that the going concem basis is inappropriate,

STRATEGIC REPORT

The company Has chosen. in aoccrdance wuth Section 414C(11) of the Compames Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 to' set out within' the Company's: Strategic Report the Cornpany’s -
Strategic Report Information. Requited by Schedule. 7 of the Large. and Medium Sized Companies and Groups

{Accounts and: Reports). Regulation 2008. This includes information that would have been included in the
busmess review and details of the pnnqpal risks and unoenamhes‘

STATEMENT ASTO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
S0 far as the Directors are awate; thiere is no relevant audit information of which thé Company's auditor is-

unaware, and they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors. in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and-ta establish that the Companys auditor is aware. of that

information.
AUDITOR

Menzies LLP have been deemed re—appomted as auditors. for the ensuing year in aoooxdance with section 485
of the Companles Act.2006.

On behaif of the board

of.

F J Bakhos:
Direttor

29.9 (¢




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The directors are r&sponscble for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financiat

statements in accordance with applicable. law and regulahons e

Company Jaw requires the directors: to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors are elected to prepare the: financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards. (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accotinting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure. Framework'. Under company taw-the directors must:not approve the financial
statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In pfepanng those financial statements, the directors are

required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»

+ stats: whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed; sub;ect fo any material’

departures disélosed and explalned in the financial statements;

e prepare the ﬁnancial statements an the gping concern basis uniess it is:inappropriate to presume that

the Company. will continue in business..

The directors are responsuble for keeping adequate accounting records that are suifficient to show-and explain
the Company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the. financial position of the
Company and enable them to6 ensure that the financial statéments comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities:




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK

LIMITED .
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Constellation Barclay UK Limited for the year ended 31 December
2017 whick comprise the. statement: of profit or loss.and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial
position, the staternent of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting pelicies. The financial reporting framework that has biéen applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Aocountlng Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced

Disclosure Framework'.
In our opinion the financial statements: . .

¢ give atrue and fair view: of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December: 201 7, and of its loss for the
year then ended,

. have been propedy 'preparéd in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

e have been prepared in accof‘dance.wm the requirements of the Companies: Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational: Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applxcable )
law. Our responsibilities under those standards’are fuither described.in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the -audit
of the financial statemenits section of our réport We are independent of the company in accordance with the

. ethical requirements that are relevant to our-audit of the financial statements in the UK; including the FRC's

Ethical Standard, and we have-fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiert and appropriate to provide a.basis for our N

opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concem

We.draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements which outlines the manageiment's decision to wind up the.
Company as part ofa group restructure process. As stated In note 2, these-eveénts or conditions, along with the:
other. matters, as set forth in note 2, indicate: that the going concern basis is inappropriate. Our opinion is not
‘modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the: other information. The: othef information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s. report thereon, Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, exceptto the' extent otherwise explicilly stated in -
our report, we do not express any forrn of assurance conclusion thereon. -

In connection with our atidit of the financial statements, our responsibility is fo.read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements: or ot
knowledge obtained in the audit or etherwise-appears to be maferially misstated. if we |dentrfy such matenial
inconsistencies. or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatament, of the-other information. if, baséd on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this ‘other mfermatron we are
required fo report.that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Gpinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our ob:in‘i‘o:n. based on the work undertakeén in the course: of the audit:

o the information given in the strateglc report and the directors' report for the: financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financiai statements; and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable Iegal
requirements.

6 .
o



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK

LIMITED
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our krpwledge and understanding of the company. and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we liave not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters in relation to which the Compames Act 2006
requn'es us to report to you if; in our opinion:

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns. adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or .

" the financial statéments aré not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
o certain disclosures of difectors’ remunération-specified by Iéw are nof made; or
*  we have not received all the information and. explanations we reduire for our audit. '
Responsibilities c#‘ directors

As explained more tu!ly in the directors’ respensibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the:

preparation of the financial statements and. for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the- directors deterrmne is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or esror. )

In prepanng the financial statemetits, the directors are responsible for assessing the campanys abmty to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as apphcable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern. basis of accounting unless the directors efther intend to llqwdate the company or t6 cease operations, or
have no realistic aiterative but to do so.

Audltnr’s msponsmlllﬁes for the audut of the. ﬁnanclal statements

) Our 0bj=ed!ves are to-obtain reasqnable assuranoe-about ,whethe_r the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonablée-assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guacantee that an audit conducted i
accordance with: ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can.arise:
from fraud.or-error and dre considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be:
expected to influénca thie economic deuslons of users taken on the:basis of these financial statements. -

A further descnptmn of our responsibllmes for the audit of the fihancial statentients is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's-webisite at: https:/fwww-fic. ong uk/auditorsresponsbiltties. This descnpbon forms pait of our
audltor’s report.

Use of our repore

This report is made sotely to the conipany’s members, as a body, in‘accordance with Chapter 3 of Part. 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our gudit work has been unidertaken so that we might state to-the company's menibers
these matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the. fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone otfver than the company: and the
company's members ag a body, for our audit wark, fér this report. orfor the opinions we- have formed.

Wrgio Wh

Caroline Mmon FCA (Semor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Menzies LLP
Charted Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Ashcombe House
"5 The Crescent
Leatherhead
Sumey
KT22 8DY
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CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes Yearended 31 Year ended 31
December 2017 December 2016

$°000 $°000
Revenua ' - -
Cost of sales : . - -
GROSS PROFIT ' - -
Administrative expenses. . @“8) (45
OPERATING LOSS C 4 _ @8y 46)
Finance expenses o 5 (10,808) {9,941)
Impaimmient of investmeént inr subsidiary 7 - 63,344 (86.781)
PROFITI(LOSS) BEFORE TAX o 52,488 (96,768)
Tax ¢charge- ‘ . ' 6 - ’ -
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD’ _ 52,488  (95,768)
Other compr_ahehsiva;iﬁcbxﬁé : - h e

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD " 52,488 (96,768)

All revenue and operating results are derived ffom discontinued operations:

The nectes on pages 11 to 16 formn: part of these financial statements.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments 7

CURRENT ASSETS
Investments 7

.

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY

Share capital
Share premium.

- Retainéd eamings$
TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES )
Loans from parent company ) 8

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade end other payables : . ' ¢

[ncome taxeés

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2016

o ®

2017
$'000 $'000
- 207,191
- 207,191
235,254 -
.2'3'5‘,254 207,191
193,972 193,972
(54,465) (106,953)
139,507 87.019
. 100000
- 100,000
95,747 20,172
95,747 20,172
95,747 120,172
235254 " 207191

'fh@' financial statemeénts were approved by the board of Directors and authorised for issue on Zq,‘-?'. [‘P

Cbmpany registration number 08804260

The notes on pages. 11 to 16 form part of these financiat statements.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

As at 31 December 2015 _ -

Issue df shares ' -
Comprehensive income for period . -

As at 31 December 2016 ‘ , -

Issue of shares . -
Comprehensive income for period = . -

Retained
Share capital Share premium earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
159,779 (10,185) 149,594
34,193 - 34193
- (96,768 (96,768)
. 193,972 . (106,953) 87,019
- 52488 52,488
{93,972  (64.465) 139,507

As at 31 December 2017 : -

The notes on pages 11 to 16 form part of these financial statements.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1.  COMPANY INFORMATION

Constéllaﬁon Barclay Irivest UK Umlted is a private company limited by shares. and is registered. in
England and Walés. The Company's principal acti.v,ity is that of an investment company.

The address of the Company’s registered office is shown on the company information page. its principal
place of business is 111 East 48th St, New York, NY 10017, USA.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foliowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with terns which are
considered material In relation to the financial statements, except as noted below.

Basis of accounting

The financia). statements of Constellatiort Barclay. vest UK Limited have been prepared in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standard 101 The Reduced Disclosure Framework' and the Companies. Act
2006.

The directors intend to wind up the Company by transferring its investment to other companies within the
group. This indicates that the Company is rio longer @ going concem. Therefore the financial statements
have been prepared on a break-up basis and the following policies and. pmc‘edure‘s were-implemented:

¢ at 31 December 2017 all non-current ‘assets are considered as reallsable hence reclassified as
current.assets .

s all assets Have beén disclosed at values at'which they dre expected to.be realised

« allliabilities reflect the full amaunt at which they are expected to materialise

Consolidation

The Cempany has taken advantage of the exemption available from preparing consolidated accounts;
5400 of the Companies Act-2006. As a resulf thé accounts show information about thHe. Company as an
individual entily. However, the Company. and its subsldranes will be included in the: consolidated accounts
of the parént company, Constellation Hétels Helding Ltd, a company moorporated in Luxembourg. Iits
registered office.is 15, boulevard Roosevelt L-2450 Luxembourg.

Financial reporting standard 101 - réduced disclosure exemptions
The oo,n'ip'any has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

« the requirements of IFRS 7 Einancial Instruments: Disclosures
» the requirements of paragraphs. 91-89 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremant
« the requirement in. paragraph 38 of IAS: 1 'Presentation of Finaricial Statements' to present
comparatlve information in
o. paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1
o paragraph 73(e) of IAS-16 Propeny Plant and Equnpmenf
« the requirements of paragraphs 10(dj, 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111
and $34-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
« fhe reguirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
¢ the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Pohcies Changes In Accounting
Estimates and Emors
* the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Ralated Party Disclosures
» the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disciosures to disclose related party transactions
entered into between two. or more members of a group, provided tiat any subsidiary which is a
party to the transaction is wholly owried by such a member

1
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CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2..  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(nvestmems in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provisions for lmpalrmem in the financial
statements of the. Company. Dividends are accounted for when the Comgany becomes entitled to recsive’
them. On the drsposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying vaiue of the investments may not
be recoverable the investment is reviewed for impaifment and impaired if required. The recoverable vaiue
of investments is the rugher of its fair vaiue less costs to sell and value in use.

Impairment changee are rncluded in the statement of proﬁt or loss and other compnehensrve income.
AII investiments: have been dasssﬁed as curment assets. - '
qurgm_:umncrqs,

The functional and presentation currency: of the' Company is US Dollar. Transactions i foreign cumencies
are inittally récorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at'the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are- retranslated .at the rates ruling at the
reporting date. All exchange differences grising on settlement of foreign: currency transactions and. on
retransiation of unsettled monetary assets and Irabllmes dre recogmsed lmmedlately in the income
statement. . .

Income taxes
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

" The current tax.is based. on taxable profit or loss for the year, Taxable profit or loss differs. from net pmﬁt
or loss. as reported in the: income statement because it excludes items of income or expense. that are
* taxable or dediictible in otherpenods and.it further exc}udes ftems that are never taxable of deductible.

The Company's fability for current tax is rziculated using tax rates that have bééen enaded oF
substantively ehacted by:the reporting date.

Deferred ihcome tax is necogmsed on: all temporary. différences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their camying amounts in the financial statements with the foliowing: exceptions:

o Where the temporary difference anses from: the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in- & transaction that is' not & busiriess combination that at the-time 6f the transaction affect
- neitfer accountmg nor taxable’ proﬁt or loss; .

o in respect of taxable temporary drtferences assoaated with |nvestmen$ in subsrdlanes
associates and joint ventures; where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is' prebable that the temporary differencés will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and.

. deferred income 'tax assets are recognised only te the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be availabie against which the deductible temporary differences, carried-forward tax credits or
tax Iosses can be utilised.

Deferred income. tax assets and fiabilities are measured on an Gidiscolinted basis at the tax rates that are
expected to 2pply when the related asset is realised or liability is: settled, based on tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enadted at the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charge to
equity. Otherwise incdme tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

12



CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial ihstmme’nts

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a firancial
liability oF equity instrurment of another-

" Financial instruments are generally recognised as soon as the Company becomes parly to the contractual
regulations of the financial instrument,

The-Company has no financial assets. All financial liabilities are classified as held at amortised cost The
Company does not have any other-classes of financial assets and liabilities.

1) Trade and:other p’ayables

Trade payables are ¢bligations to pay for goods or services that have beerr acquired in the ordrnary
course of business. from suppners Accounts payable are classified as. current liabilities if payment is due
within one. year or Iess (ar in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

2) Share capital

Financial instruments. lssued by the Company-are treated as equity only to the extent that they do hot
meet the definition of a financial liabilty. The Company’s. ordinary shares are classed as equity and
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issué' costs, allocated bétween share capital arid share
preium.

3) Laans and other payables

Loans and payables are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or detefminable payments that are: not
quéted in an active market. They are included in current ligbilities, except for maturities. greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting périod, these are classified as non-current liatilities. Loan and other
payables comprise of intercompany debt and is disclosed as such

3.°  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ES'TIMATE"S

(n the apphcabon of the Company's accounting policies, which are desgsibed-in. note 2, managément: are
required to make’ 1udgements estimates and assumptions about the canying amounts of assets and .
liabilities that are. nof readily apparent from other sources. The estifmates and underlying assumptions are:
based on historical expérience and other factors that are considered tor be relevant. Actual resuifs may-
differ from these estimates. .

The estimates and underlymg assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis: Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised ‘in the: perlod in which the-estimate. is revised if the révision -affects only that
‘period, or in the period of the revision and future penods if the revision aﬂ‘ects both current and future.
periods.

The carrying value of investments in subsidiasies is subject to the: performance of the subsidiaries’
investments. The underlying asset, the InterContinental Barclay Hofel in New York is reviewed for
impairment in iine with accounting policies autlined in note 2 to these financial statements. The subsidiary
undertaking has prepared forecasts and obtained third' party valuations, which support the carrying value
of the investment.




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. OPERATING LOSS

The opeﬁaﬁng loss is stated after charging:

Auditors remuneration
Gains on foreign clirrency-exchange
Impairment reversal/(charge) on fixed asset investments

Company, auditor’s remuneration:
Audit of Company accounts

Other services:
- accounting:services

Total Company auditor’s remuneration

. FINANCE EXPENSES

Interest expense on financial liabilities classified as financial liabiliies-

mé,asdred at.amortiséd cost
6.  INCOME TAX

UK corporation tax

2017 2016
$'000 $000
- 23 16
- (3)
63.344 (86,781)
2017 2016
" $'C00 $'000
23 16

11 7

34 23
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
10,808 9,841
2017 2016
$'000

$'000

Corporation tax is caleulated at 19.25% of the estimated ass’essablé. loss for the period (2016: 20%).

The credit for the petiod can be reconculed to the loss per the. statement of oomprehensave income as

follows:

Factors affecting tax charge for the pericd:
Profit/{Loss) before taxation

AProﬁt befare taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax
i the UK of 19.25% (2016: 20%)

Effécts of

Group relief

impaiment of investment
Unrelieved losses canvied forward

Total current tax

Tax on loss on brdinary activities

2017

$'000 -

52,488

10,104

9
(12,194)
2,081

2016
$'000.

(96,768)

(19.354).

1.997
17357




CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

7. INVESTMENTS -

. . ) ' . lnyésﬁ'nént in
: subsidiaries
$°000
Cost
At 1 January 2017 . 293,972
Additions A
Dispesals (35.281).
At December 2017 : , . 258,891
Impairment : .
At-1 January 2017 ) : o (86,781)
lmp'airment reversal 63’344.
At 31 December 2017 . . ' (23,437)
Net book value at 31 December 2017 ' . 235,254
Net book value at 31 December 2016 - 207,191

The company has a direct holding in the following subsidiary: .

Pringipal place of Percentage and

Country of business Nature of class of equity:
Name: rogistration . business- owned
Constellation Barclay  United States of 111 East 48" Street; New Investment 100% subscribed
" Holdings US, LLC America York, N 10017, USA company: capital

The: company also has an indirect” holding of 80.1% of the subscribed capital of 141 East 48th Street
Heoldings, LLC, Incorporated in the United States; whose principal activity is. that of hoteis and
“accommodation. Its- registered office and principal plaoe of business is 111 East 48th Street, New York,
NY 10017, USA: |

The Company has performed . its annual |mpa1rrnent test on the value of its subs;dia;y, Constellation
Barctay Holdings US, LLC. As at 31 December 2017, the valuation of the underiging biotel ~asset,
determined on the basis of valuéin uss, resulting in an impairment reversal of $63,343,714.

Key assumptions used to défermine the vaiue were tHe external third party valuation, the operating fesults
and the discount rate. Operating results are based on management: forecasts of the undertying hotel
asset. The discount rate is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes
intd account both debt and equity.

The cost of equity is derived from the expectéd rétum on investment The cost of debt is based on
weighted average cost of the group bomowings. Specific. risk is incorporated by applying individual beta
factors. The beta factors are: evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to
the discount rate are made to factor in the specific antourit and timing of the future tax flows in order to
refiect a pre-tax dlscount rate. ln 2017, the cash flows. were discounted at a rate of 8.25%.
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CONSTELLATION BARCLAY INVEST UK LIMITED .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2017

8.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016
$°000 $000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade creditors 11 -
Accruals © 33 .42
Loans from parent company 95,703 20,130
95,747 20,172
Amounts falling, due within greater than ane year.
Loans from parent company 100,000
100,000

3.  SHARE CAPITAL -

Autharised, issued, called up and fully paid

Ordinary shares of $1 each

Ordinary shares of $1 each

10. RESERVES

Retained eamings

31 December 16

No of'shares Share capital
. : $

107 107
. 31 December 17
No of shares Share capital

’ $

© 107 107

This reserve records. accumulated profits less distributions te owners.

11.

PARENT COMPANY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Share premium
$
193,971,816

Share premium

$
193,971,816

T

The immediate. parent company is Constellation Barclay. US, LLC, a limited liability company incorporated

in United States.

) The ultimate parent company is Prime Capital S-A. Consolidated financial statements can be obtained
from 15 Boulevard Roosevelt, L-2450, Luxembourg.

The ultimate controfling party is His Excellency Sheikh Hamad Bin Jassim Bin Jabr Al-Thani, by the virtue

of his majority shareholding in Prime Capital S.A.

12. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The directors intend fo wind up the Company by transferring its investment to other companies within the

group after the balance sheet date.
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Independent auditor’'s report

To the Shareholders of

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A.
15, boulevard Roosevelt

L-2450 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consoiidated financial statements of Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. and its
subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at

31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss. the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financiat position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (the “Law of

23 July 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs”) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
"Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier' ("CSSF"). Qur responsibilities uhder those Law and
standards are further described in the “responsibilities of the “réviseur d'entreprises agréé” for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are also independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and have fuffilled our other ethical
responsibilities under those ethical requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Board of Managers of Constellation Hotels Holding GP S.a r.l. (the "General partner”) is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the consolidated
management report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our report of the “reviseur
d’entreprises agrée” thereon.
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Ovur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Managers of the General Partner and those charged with governance
for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Managers of the General Partner is responsible for the preparation ang fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for
such internal control as the Board of Managers of the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. ' )

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Managers of the General Partner is
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Managers of the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
“réviseur d'entreprises agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internat control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Managers of the General Partner.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Managers of the General Partner use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the “réviseur d'entreprises agréé”. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an apinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Managers of the General
Partner, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

\

Ernst & Young
Société anonyme
Cabinet de révision agréé

Luxembourg, 29 June 2018
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017

ASSETS

(in EUR '000)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investment in associates and joint ventures
Other non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Inventuries

Trade and other receivables
Other cusrent assets
Current tax receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Assets of 3 disposal group held-for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Notes

31 Dec. 2017

2502253
195 640
25 866
445 141
57 468

3 226 368

4172

27 795
1180922
538
92874

1306 301

60 607

4593276

31 Dec. 2016

3237751
1128436
883 502
9888
459 366
59 449

5778402

6211
42 597
315357
9465
211284

585414

6363816




Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement ot Financial Position (Continued)

As at 3t Decenber 2017
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(in EUR '000)

EQUITY

Issued share capital

Legal reserve

Contribution without issue of shares
Foreign currency translation reserve
Other reserves

Asset revaluation surplus

Retained earnings -

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current tiabilities
Derivative financ:al instruments
Provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade payables

Other current payables

Current tax payables

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities associated with the disposal group held for sale

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

31 Dec. 2017

166 031
676
1135191
(181 326)
(46 874)
538 402
(399 987)
1212113
55072

1267185

2351082
353197
4118

17 527
9733

2735657
351415
61 492
127 300
1 185
4574
545 966
44 468

3326 091

4593 276

The accompanying notes are an in“ﬁf\?{ of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 Dec. 2016

166 031
676
1397 205
(106 309)
(18 939)

(185 697)
1252967
79 860

1332827

3619975
394 S73
8732
22125
20 709

4066 114
787 612
S8 149
107 708
6498
4908

964 875

5030989

6363 816
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(in EUR '000}

Revenue

Fair value adjustments in investment properties
Operating expense

Other operating income

Operating loss

Other non-operating income

Other non-operating expense

Finance income

Finance expense

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Income tax credit

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-Controlling Interests (NCI)

For the year
ended 31
December 2017

570520
(830613)
72171

(187 922)

105

(3 164)
118 466
(244 086)
379

52 063

(264 159)
10973

(253 186)

(214 289)
(38 897)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements..

For the year
ended 31
December 2016

588 311
(73 988)
(585 349)
62210

(8 816)

2456

(12 267)
65 784
{168 301)
1459

(120 185)
45 308

{74 877)

(67 001)
(7 876)
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

w

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome -
For the year ended 31 December 2017
&
-
For the year For the year
{in EUR "C00}) ) Notes ended 31 ended 31 ]
December 2017 December 2016 -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (253 186) > (74 877)
Remeasurements fosses on definad benefit plans (1574) (14 6S5) b
Net gains on derivative financial instcuments 2041 2467
Lo i
.Net other c.omprehenswe mc'ome/ {loss) to be reclassified 467 (12 188)
in the P&L in subsequent period
Revaluation surplus on progperty, plant and equipment $34 698 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (7 519) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (68 945) {122 312) E
Net other comprehensive income/ {loss} not to be
1
reclassified in the P&L in subsequent period 458234 (122312) g
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 458 701 {134 500) E
Tota! comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 205 515 (209377} »
Attributable to: =
Equity holders of the parent 221161 (200 304)
Noa-Controlling Interests (NCI) (15 646) {9073) .
W
.
w
T 1o
st
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofng.esé%nsolidated financial statements. -
X
%
3
-
»
i
=
&
&
L]
12 o ,I‘ .
C R
i % =
J iR




-3

-y

Q-

o

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended 31 Deccmber 2017

(in EUR '000)

Operating activities
Loss befare tax

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net
cash flows

Depreciation and write-off of property, plant and
equipment :
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Loss in fair value of property, piant and
equipment

Change in fair value of investment properties and
derivative

Adjustment for other non-cash items

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures . _
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Interest income

Interest expense

Working capital adjustments

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and inventocy

Increase/{Decrease) in trade and other payables

Received/paid interest and income taxes
Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
{Acquisition)/redemption of bonds and loans

Acquisition of associates and joint ventures, net
of cash acquired

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed
Held for sale, net of cash

Net cash flows used in investing activities

. ARG YRR e
WoC i

(€8]

Notes For the year
ended 31
December 2017

(264 159)

87 069
205726

64 500

{1302}

8773
(379}
(52 063)
(16 459)
220757

(31.220)

94 269

16 459
(126 319)
(7511)
198 201

(219 218)
(82 305)
(19 931)
(25 493)

(124 982)
(4 552)
(476 487)

For the year
ended 31
December 2016

(120 185)

94 323

4785

73390

20770
(1459)
{25 863)
158097

37857

(8571)

25 863
(144 651)

(3852)
160 504

(L97 563)
(104 927)
85005

(8 429)

(225,914)




The accompanying notes are an integra
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Financing activities

Contribution without issue of shares
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of botrowings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange difference
Net increase/{dacrease) in restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at 1
January

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at 31
December

APASTCTI

125 408

61304
(29 252}
157 460

(120 826)

(3 232)
5643

211284

92 874

rf"i‘fr{?:egée consolidated financial statements.

113676
34 853
(126 983)
21546

(43 864)

{4 668}
(18 160)

277976

211284
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017
Issved Legal Contribution Foreign Other Asset Retained Equity Non- Total Equity
share reserve without issue currency reserves revaluation earnings attributable controlling
capital of shares translation surplus to equity interests {(NCl}
reserve holders of the
parent
company
ALY January 2016 166 031 676 1283529 14 806 (7305) - (118 696) 1339041 70 086 1409127
> the periad - - - - - - {67 001) (67 001) {7 878) (74 877)
Comprehensive inss . - - - (121 115) (12 188} - - {133 303) {1197} {134 500)
| comprehensive Loss - - - {121 115) (12 188) - (67 001) (200 304) (9073) (209377)
{ centribution without issuing R R 113676 R N - A 113676 18847 132 523
i scape of consolidation - - - - 554 - - 554 - 554
! December 2016 166031 676 1397205 (106 309) (18 939) - (185 697) 1252967 79 860 1332827
i+125 for the period - - - - - - (214 289) {214 289) (38 887) {253 18¢)
hier Comprehensive tncome/{Loss) - - - {75 017) (27 935) 538402 - 435450 23251 458 701
Wl comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - - {75 017} (27 935) 538402 (214 289) 221161 (15 646) 205515
S::ic0|1x(ibuiiorv without R R (362 010y ~ . . N (262 014) i9 142) (271 156)
December 2017 166 031 ° 676 1135191 (181 326) (46 874) 538 402 {399 987} 1212113 55072 1267185
“ Repayment for an amount of {EUR 387 422 thousand) ang issuing for an amount of EUR 125 408 thousand.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
1S ¢
L
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2017 *
Note 1: Corporate Information -
Constellation Hotels Holding ttd S.C.A. (hereafter “Constellation Hotels Holding”, the “Company”) was .
incorporated as a public limited company (“Société Anonyme”) in Luxembourg on 26 March 2012. W
On 31 December 2013, the shareholders decided to change the legal form of the Company to transform it into a g
k.

partnership limited by shares (“Société en commandite par actions”) under Luxembourg law. At the same date
the shareholders decided to decrease the share capital of the Company from EUR 400 031 000 to EUR
166 031 000. The registered office of the Company is at 15, boulevard Roosevelt, L-2450 Luxembourg, and the LA
Company is registered in the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register under the number 8 167.941.

EL L

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. and its subsidiaries {hereafter the “Group”) is engaged in acquisition of
hotels, commercial, retail as well as mixed-use real estate properties and investment in financial instruments.

m

The Group is owned by the following shareholders:

Country of 'Pe'rcenta‘ge of' : Percentage of
mcorporatnon ownershlp 2017 ownershlp 2016

kX Luxembqq'rgy ' 99 98% 49 99%-. L

ReglstlmntedSérl Luxembourg - AREURE 001%:: :

As of 31 December 2017 Reg|s lnvestment S. A sold 49 99% representing 830 1SS sharos and Regcs Limited S a e
r.l. sold 0.01% representing 1 unlimited share of the Group to Prime Capital S.A. and Constellation Hotels Holding -
GP S.ar.lrespectively. ﬂ
The consolidated financial statements were authorized by the Board of Managers of Constellation Hotels Holding .
GP S.ar.l, (the “Management Company”), on 29 june 2018, 3
Note 2: Significant accounting policies s
2.1. Basis of preparation
5
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union (IFRS). -
B X
s
The consolidated fmanc»al statements have been prepared on going concern basis applying a historical cost basis, .
except for, property, plant and equipment, investment properties and derivative financial instruments that have 0 |
been measured at fair value. b
The consolidated financial statements are presented in EUR and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand i
(EUR ‘000), except when atherwise indicated. e
The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. b
R
s
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1
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o
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.3.1. Business combinations and loss of control and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cast of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and inciuded in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope
of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized either in either profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of 1AS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified al} of the assets acquired and
all of the liabitities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. :

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of Impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU} and part of the aoperation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwitl disposed in these circumstances is. measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The loss of controt while retaining a residual equity interest may be analyzed as the disposal of a controlling
interest followed by the acquisition of a non-cantrolling interest. This process involves, as of the date when

control is lost:

The recognition of a gain or loss on disposal, comprising:
o Again or loss resulting from the percentage ownership interest sold ;
o A gain or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of the ownership interest

retained in the entity.
- The other comprehensive income items are reclassified in the profit or loss resulting from the ownership

interest disposed.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Transactions with non-controlling interests in fully consolidated companies that do not result in a loss of control,
are accounted for as equity transactions, with no effect on profit or (oss or on other comprehensive income.

2.3.2.  Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wh'erebv the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of controf of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control,

The considerations made in determiring significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount

- of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture since

the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OC). in addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture,

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controiling interests in the
subsidiaries of the joint venture,

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in fine with those of the Group.

After application of the equity methad, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and
its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture upon foss of significant influence over the joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
- twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.3.3. fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment
properties, property, plant and equipment at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to selfl an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer.the liability takes place either:

in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiiity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of refevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level 1: Fair value measured by reference to quoted grices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

b. Level 2: Fair value measured by reference to inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices);

c. Level 3: Fair value measured by reference to inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as property plant and equipment and the
recoverable amounts of the cash generating units. Involvement of external valuers is determined annually by the
Group management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s Board-of Directors. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Group management analyses the movements in the values of assets which are
required to be remeasured as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Group management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset and the level! of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

2.3.4.  Revenue recognition

Inaccordance with I1AS 18 “Revenue”, revenue corresponds to the value of goods and services sold in the ordinary

" course of business by fully consolidated companies. The Group applies the guidance provided in IAS 18 to

determine whether it acts as the principal or an agentin its contractual hotel management relationships. For the
purpose of applying IAS 18, the Group is considered as acting as the principal when it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering of services. In this case, the revenue and related
expenses are reported separately in the income statement. When the above criterion is not met, the Group is
considered as acting as an agent and only the remuneration corresponding to the agency fee is recognized in
revenue. in accordance with IAS 18 "Revenue”, revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of all discounts and rebates, VAT, other sales taxes and fair value of customer loyalty
programs. Revenue from product sales is recognized when the product is delivered and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from sales of services is recognized when the service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017 '

2.3.5. Taxes
2.3.5.1. Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement
of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2.3.5.2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit ar loss

- Inrespect of taxable temparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction thatis not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow alf or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised delerred tax dssets are re-assessed at esch reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.
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Constellation Fotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition
at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The
adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred
during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and ohty if it has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or ta realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.3.6. Foreign currency transtation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in euras, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct
method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or
foss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

2.3.6.1. Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on thase
manetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., transtation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OC! or profit or loss, respectively).

2.3.6.2. Group Companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of exchange
orevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on transtation for consolidation are recognised
in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCi relating to that particular foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.6.3. Disposal group Held for sale

The Group classifies disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for
sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as curreat items in the statement
of financial position.

23.7.  Property, pkint and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are performed annually.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in QCl and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase
is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revatuation surplus.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying the straight line method at the rates specified below. The
difference between the depreciation under the cost model and the depreciation under the revaluation model is
recognised in the revaluation reserve directly. Depreciation on all additions in fixed assets is charged from the
date in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the date of disposal,

“ltem-
Building |
Plarizand:machinerys - =
Fubiture; fittings and équipment; - *

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or {oss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Description of the valuation techniques used are disclosed in Note 7.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.8.  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.9. Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based onan annual
valuation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by
the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

Description of the valuation techniques used are disclosed in Note 9.
2.3.10. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. ’

The useful fives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over ‘the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amartisation period or method, as approgriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is cansistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues ta be supportable. if not, the change in useful life fram indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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A summary of useful lives of Group's intangible assets is, as follows:

Item . L ' © Useful lifein-years
.-Concessuons, patentsand hcenses S ) o L L 5to7"

-~0thermtang|b(es (mcludmg management contract) - : s T e : -'.':'30_tq~41-x
GoddwillandiBrands - - . . .. SO - - indefinite.

2.3.11. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

2.3.11.1. Financia! assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or coavention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Loans and receivabies
= Held-to-maturity investments

Financiol assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39. The Group has not designated any financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group does not have any financial asset to be measured on fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and reccivables

As defined by 1AS 39 - Financial instruments, “Loans and receivables” mainly comprise loans to non-consolidated
companies. They are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost at each
balance-sheet date. If there is an objective indication of impairment, an impairment loss is recognized at the
balance-sheet date. The impairment loss corresponds to the difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount (i.e. the present value of the expected cash flows discounted using the original effective
interest rate) and is recagnized in profit or loss. This loss may be reversed if the recoverable amount increases in
a subsequent period.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investment are bonds which the Group has the ability and intent to hold until maturity. Held-
to-maturity debt investment s are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the amortization or discounts using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position} when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. in
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that refiects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to reply.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group

of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be refiably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the prabability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not inctuded in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
EIR.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. interest income (recorded as finance income in the statement of profit or loss)
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans, together with the associated allowance are
written off when there js no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or foss.

2.3.11.2.Financial liabilities

initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

loans and horrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, shareholders and bank loans, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and [osses are recognised in profit or

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
-are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to Note 16.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financia! liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
“carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.11.3. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if therg is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

2.3.12. Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as, interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under 1AS 39 are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as cost of sales.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

2.3.13. Inventories

lnventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, in accordance with 1AS 2 - Inventories.
Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method.

2.3.14. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication cxists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the.Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individuat asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amaunt.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are p'repared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously revalued with the
revatuation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCi up to the amount of any
previous revaluation., . ) ’

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. if such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amaunt of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverahble amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

2.3.15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand, and short-term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The consolidated statement of cash flows is presented on the same basis as the management reporting schedules
used internally to manage the business. it shows cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.

Cash flows from operating activities include:

- Funds from operations, before non-recurring items and after adjustment for changes in deferred taxes
and gains and losses on disposals of assets,

- Cash received and paid on non-recurring transactions.

- Changes in working capital.

Cash flows from investing activities comprise:

- Renovation and maintenance expenditure to maintain in a good state of repair operating assets held at
January 1 of each year.

- Development expenditure, including the fixed assets and working capital of newly consolidated
subsidiaries and additions to fixed assets of existing subsidiaries.

- Development expenditure on non-current assets classified as held for sale.

- Proceeds from disposals of assets. '

Cash flows from financing activities include:

- Changes in equity.
- Changesin debt.
- Dividends.

2.3.16. Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, a provision is recognized
when the Group has a present obligation {legal, contractual or implicit) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, in
application of certain assumptions. Provisions are discounted when the effect of the time value of money is
material, using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. The most
commonly applied rates are the prime long-term corporate bond rate or the government bond rate. Provisions
far restructuring costs are recorded when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and the
plan’s main features have been announced to those affected by it as of the close of accounts.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.3.17. Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Under defined contribytion plans, the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay benefits.
Contributions under these plans are recognized immediately as an expense.

For defined benefit plans, under which the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to provide agreed benefits
to current and future employees in exchange for a given level of service (including muiti-employer plans when
the manager is able to provide the necessary information), the Group’s obligations are determined in accordance
with 1AS 19 - Emplayee Benefits. The Group’s obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method based
on actuarial assumptions related to future salary levels, retirement age, mortality, staff turnover and the discount
rate. These assumptions take into account the macro-economic environment and other specific conditions in the
various host countries. Pension and other retirement benefit obligations take into account the market value of
plan assets. The amount recognized in the statement of financial position corresponds to the discounted present
value of the defined benefit obligation loss the fair valug of plan assets. Any surpluses, corresponding to the
excess of the fair value of plan assets over the projected benefit obligation, are recognized only when they
represent the presentvalue of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan, Current service cost, past service cost, administrative expense, and taxes for
the year, and paid contributions and benefits are recognized in operating expense, whereas net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) is recognized in financial expense {income).

For post-employment benefits, actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments are recognized immediately in equity. However, actuarial gains and lasses on long-term
benefit obligations towards active employees {such as jubilees, seniority bonuses...) are recognized directly in
profit or loss in net financial expense.

Employee benefits expense includes all amounts paid or payable to employees, including statutory and
discretionary profit-sharing, pension contributions, payroll taxes and the cost of share-based payments.

2.4, Change in accounting policies and disclosure

The Group re-assessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of all
classes of property, ptant and equipment after initial recognition. The Group had previously measured all
property, plant and equipment using the cost model whereby, after initiail recognition of the asset classified as
property, plant and equipment, the asset was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

On 31 December 2017, the Group elected to change the method of accounting for {and, building and plant and
machinery classified as property, plant and equipment, as the Group believes that the revaluation model
provides more relevant information to the users of its financial statements. The Group applied the revaluation
model prospectively. After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at fair value at the
date of the revaiuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. For details refer to Note 7.

2.4.1.  New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2017.
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The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:
2.4.1.1. Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative project and introduce additional disclosure
requirements intended to address investors’ concerns that financial statements do not currently enable them to
understand the entity’s cash flows; particularly in respect of the management of financing activities.

The amendments require disclosure of information enabling users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, instead they clarify that financing activities are based on the existing
definition used in IAS 7.

Although there is no specific format required to comply with the new requirements, the amendments include
illustrative examples to show how an entity can meet the objective of these amendments.

The Group has adopted the amendment in the current year but the amendment did not affect the Group’s
financial statements.

2.4.1.2. Amendment to IAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

The amendments clarify that unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value in the financial
statements but at cost for tax purposes can give rise ta deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarify that:

- the carrying amount of an asset does nat limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits; and
that
when comparing deductible temporary differences with the future taxable profits, the future taxable
profits excludes tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible differences.

The Group has adopted the amendment in the current year but the amendment did not affect the Group’s
financial statements.

2.4.1.3. Annual limprovements 2014-2016 Cycie

Amendments to IFRS 12 disclosure of interests in other entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirement in IFRS 12. The amendment clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the Standard, except for those in paragraphs 810-B16, apply to any interests that are classified
as held for sale, held for distribution to owners or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS S Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,

As 31 December 2017, the Group classified its interest in a Hotel in France, a wholly owned subsidiary, as held
for sale (see Note 21), but these amendments did not affect the Group’s financlal statements.

2.4.1.4. Standard issued but not vet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, are disclosed below. The Group intends
to adopt these standards, when they become effective.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

2.4.1.5. IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS S is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application
is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 {2009,
2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015. The adoption of IFRS S
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial liabilities. IFRS 9 has been endorsed by the EU on 22
November 2016. The group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate
comparative information.

2.4.1.6. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step mode! that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer, The principles
in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard
is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a
full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
early adoption permitted. IFRS 15 has been endorsed by the £U on 22 September 2016 and the group plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate comparative information. The Group
is still in process of assessing the impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements.

2.4.1.7. Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 in dealing with the loss -of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an
investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these
amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively. The
Group will apply these amendments when they become effective.

2.4.1.8. IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, |FRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets {e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a Hability
to make lease payments {i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the {ease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
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Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {e.g., a change
in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under 1AS 17. Lessors wrilt
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in I1AS 17 and distinguish between two
types of leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but
not before an entity applies IFRS 15. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group has assessed the impact of the standard and concluded that it will not have material impact on the
financial statements.)

2.4.2.  Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (issued in December 2016}

IERS 1 First-time Adogtion of international Fingncial Reporting Standards- Deletion of short-term exemptions for
first-time adopters IFRS 1

The proposed amendment would delete the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of IFRS 1, because the
relief provided in those exemptions was relevant for reporting periods than have now passed and, as such, has

served its intended purpose,

The exemptions in these paragraphs atlowed first-time adopters the same transition relief as existing IFRS
preparers with respect to:

- providing certain comparative disclosures about financial instruments, which were required as a result
of several amendments to [FRS 7;

- providing comparative information for the disclosures required by 1AS 19 about the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to actuarial assumptions; and

- retrospective application of the investment entities requirements of IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27.

The IASB is also proposing to delete the requirement in paragraph E6 of IFRS 1 to assess whether an entity is an
investment entity based on facts and circumstances at the date of transition to IFRSs on the basis that this has
the same outcome as requiring the assessment to be made retrospectively. The amendment is effective from 1
January 2018. This amendment is not applicable to the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advange Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initiaf recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration, Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Alternatively, an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope
that are initially recognised on or after:

- The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation, or
The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application of
interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed. However, since the Group’s current practice is in line with the
Interpretation, the Group does not expect any effect on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

- Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

- The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities
How an entity determines taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates

- How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should
be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
but certain transition reliefs are available. The Group will apply interpretation from its effective date. Since the
Group operates in a complex multinational tax environment, applying the Interpretation may affect its
consolidated financial statements and the required disclosures. In addition, the Group may need to establish
processes and pracedures to obtain information that is necessary ta apply the Interpretation on a timely basis.
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Note 3: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

3.1 Judgements

in the process of app]ying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

3.1.1. Business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own real estate. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
each acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset. The Group accounts for
an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition to the
property. More specifically, consideration is made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and,
in particular, the extent of services provided by the subsidiary {e.g., maintenance, cleaning, security,
bookkeeping, hotel services, etc.). When the acquisition of subsidiaries dogs not represent a business, it is
accounted for as an acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the
assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and no goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.

3.1.2. Operating lease contracts —~ the Group as iessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements (such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property), that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as

operating leases.
3.1.3.  Disposal group held for sale

On S May 2017, the Board of Directors of the Group announced its decision to sell the hotel Palais de la
_Méditerranée wholly owned by Societé du Palais de la Mediterranée, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Operations of Societé du Palais de la Mediterranée are classified as a disposal group held for sale. The Board
considered the subsidiary to meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for the following

reasons:

- The actions to compiete the sale were jnitiated and are expected to be completed within one year from

the date of initial classification;
- The buyer is identified and negotiations as at the reporting date are completed;
- The shareholders approved the plan to seil on 31 December 2017.

For more details on the disposal group held for sale, refer to Note 21.
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Notes to-the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
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3.14. Shareholder loans

The Group determined that the mechanism of the variable interest under the shareholders loans does not meet
the definition of a derivative under IAS 39 since the variable interest component contains an underlying profit
that is a non-financial variable specific to one party to the contract. In making this judgment, management
considered that the performance of the Group is driven by a number of different factors many of which are
clearly non-financial in nature, for example the general business risks faced by the entity or management actions.
Therefore, variable interests under sharehalders loans are carried at their amortized cost.

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumgptions when they occur.

3.2.1.  Revaluation of Property plant and equipment and investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined by real estate valuation experts using recognized valuation
techniques and the principles of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Investment property under construction is
measured based on estimates prepared by independent real estate valuation experts, except where such values
cannot be reliably determined. In addition, it measures the property, plant and egquipment at revalued amounts,
with changes in fair value being recognised in OCl. The properties were valued by reference to transactions
involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. The Group engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess fair values of property plant and equipment as at 31 December 2017.

The significant methods and assumptions used by valuers in estimating the fair value of investment praperty and
property, plant and equipment are set out in Note 7 and 9.

3.2.2.  Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
is based on a DCF {Discounted Cash Flow) model. The cash flows are derived from the budéet for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the OCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with
indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount
for the different CGUs are disclosed and further explained in Note 6.
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3.23. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and
the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual
results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments
to tax income and expenses already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,
for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences in
interpretation may arise for a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
Group Company’s domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wilt
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the leve! of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies (refer to Note 22).
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Note 4: Group structure

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated financial statements of the Group include the foliowing entities;
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Main changes in scope of coansolidation
Entry in scope of consolidation
) . T Countryof . % equ mterest
:Name ' o T ‘Prm'clpel_;act,wmes o mcorpo:‘a!tlon _'A;,3Z‘017q nty 2016
Ballet Propertres S. A
" Industry SolutionsKft . -, ... . ... .. Holdingcompany - . Hungary _: 100%. . _ -
Sélénés.a.rl
' Sélene Holdingsttd, - ..
. Séléné-Mideo: itd’ Sub—consolldatlon)
Constellatlon us Hote!s Holdmg S.A.

.- HotelBusiness: . "+ UK .ol 100%.: 7

i .Holding“co‘mpa’ny:a hq:)kémtfi:gurg::~,: B 10% s
‘ Holdmgcompany? ';hg;{embdurg__:; o 100%:;
"Holdmgcompany_‘fi ; urg

) qudmg.cor_qpaw--; g
. Holdihgcompany™ . - .\ *. 'US
- Hotel:Business. EUREPE

..-:Name e i Principalaetivities

1: ialncorporaﬂ'
eritishVirgin.
lslands Ve

ﬂee_ L e A,lr{'\re‘:s'trirent{_g'rqpér‘t:y'-f
Séléné S ar. l - o ‘
Corom Lt

g . . B :-.“. .: " . .
‘Corsolidation). . S ' .Hqt_el.?rx_srr'\esls_‘; SRRV
Constellation Hotel UK S A

'3,Constellatron Hot

_ ‘HotelBusiriess: .

.. ‘Luxembourg.
Helens RE S A
-’_ZHeIens RES.A.
Helens RE Commercr (
Helens RE‘H Commercral Investments‘
Hetens E‘IIL Commercral lnvestment_ LR
* - Helens REIV:Commerciatinvestments.
Constellation OWS Holding S.A.
Constellatron OWS Holdirig SiA.
Constellatlon WS: Corporatuon lnc X
LMIP OneWall Street'Hbfdmg free. LT ,
':3;4 MIP OneWalk:StreetMezzanine LiC - . : ‘lnvestment Property a

Luxembourgi;
Greece .
‘Greece
. . Greece"

 Holding company:.

-100%
-."100%.

‘lnvestment Property L
“Investment: Propérty

i Holding comipany + " -. - Lixerbourg:. : ~- - 7 100%..
© -Holdingcompany- .. WAL 1ot -
o USRS T S 00i01%.
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Name..... - .. . . Co . zPrlnqﬁgal-ag:fiyit’i_e; :
»ConsteliatiooﬁotelsFranoeGroupHoldinLg.S.A. S o
- Constellation-Hotels:France'Group Holding S:A.". ~ - - Holding; company ¢ Luxembourg e m e 100%, -

- Consteuatlon Hotels Italy S.r.l.
.’Constelfatxon Hotels: Italv Siede

Constellatlon Hungary (formely CHH France 2) S A
) Coasteuatlon Hungary (for nely CHH France 2) S: A
Property Market Kft

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Exit from scope of consolidation (cont.)
Country.of . . % equity interest .
‘Incorpotation 2017 .1 . 2016 "

1

Constelfation Hotels. France Grand S.A. . = 0. }Holdmgcompany'-. .. luxembourg. v - . ¢ -200% -
Soc[été dés., ot:o!ofnter(:ontm.on't' al F(once_, s 'Holdmg company; Lo Francej : woae e s 100%:
F._cance."‘ “nT 100% -

*Hote: siness - .- LFranes o+ 100%,

"Hotei 'usiness,f N

BHR Serwces (France)SA

;. HotelBusiness: -
' MotetBusiness . -

taly UL - hoL 100%)
Mealy T e Ao

Consteil atron Hotels Managément Simk.,

Holdmgcompany o Luxembourg 4“‘ ~
ik tel&RetallBusmess JHuiigary
" Hotet& Retail:Business. ° l ';_‘,ang.at\'( B TR

OpdsziGatKit -

In 2017, all entities are fully consolidated in the consalidated financial statements except for the new affiliated
companies Copley Plaza Sole Member LLC and its subsidiaries, which is consolidated following the equity method
as it is a Joint Venture jointly contralied by both members.

In 2016, all entities are fully consolidated in the consolidated financial statements except for the associate
Praperty Market Kft. and Kopaszi Gat Kft., which are consolidated following the equity method {owned by 40%
by the Group).
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 5: Capital management

The Group's main capital management objective is to maintain robust capital ratios in order to facilitate business
operations and maximize shareholder value.

Its capital structure is managed and adjusted to keep pace with changes in economic conditions, by adjusting
dividends, returning capital to shareholders or issuing new shares. Capital management objectives, poficies and
procedures were unchanged in 2017.

The main indicator used for capital management purposes is the debt-to-equity ratio (equity including .

shareholder loans for capital management purpases). The group does not have ratio on a maximum debt-to-
equity ratio. For the purpose of calculating the ratio, net debt is defined as all short and long term borrowings
(except shareholder loans for capital management purposes), including derivative financial instruments with
negative fair values and bank overdrafts less cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial instruments with
positive fair values.

Equity includes the Group’s share of reserves and retained earnings, and unrealised gains and losses recognized
directly in equity, but exclude non-cantrolling interests.

{in EUR '00Q) 31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer to Note 16) . 1?3@'968; L., 2387623

Accrued interests (refer to Note 16) " 4848 O

Derivate financial instruments (refer to Note 17) S 17527

Non interest-bearing loans
Less: cash and short-term deposits
Net debt

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company
Shareholders loans and third party loans including capitalized interest

{refer to Note 16) S ce

Total capital : Z364846. . 3031468

Capital and net debt S 3840033 WV U.5471°395

Debt- to - equity ratio (Net debt / Total capital) {%) ‘ CeTe e a o 80%
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

3

v Note 6: Intangible assets

The table below shows the Concessions, patents and licenses, other intangibles and goodwill at the closing date:

amj

Concessions,

] patents and
g ' (in EUR '000) licenses Other intanglbles Goodwill TOTAL
641969 - . 956833
BT
e (e sty
ey

At 01 January 2016 L W0 3

ey Ty

Acquisition

Disposal

P

Amortisation

s

£xchange difference -
2 615581

At 31 December 2016

Acquisition
Disposal
Disposal of subsidiaries

Transfer

Amortisation

e

. laougaay ) (20194
o lesosy @S0y
U (53058 L oL (14156)
173928. . ... . 195640

Impairment

Assets held for sale

Exchange difference,
At 31 December 2017

The disposal total amount of EUR 458 372 thousand due to the disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the London
hotels for a total amount of EUR 339 014 thousand, the ltalian hotels for EUR 18 804 thousand and the French
hotels for EUR 101 154 thousand as follows:

Concessions,

patents and
{in EUR '000) licenses Otherintangibles Goodwill TOTAL
ki the London hatel .y 14565y - (126443) 0 (339 014)
. the Italian hotels L e e RO T 9 (18804)
the French hotels o . () L (1885) (99258) : (101154)
Total disposal of subsidiaries |~ " -, (17} . (233457)., - (225498) . .- .(458972)

dl

As of 31 December 2017, the other intangible assets are mainly composed of the management contracts
recognised on the acquisition of one of the London hotel for an amount of EUR 3 043 thousand (2016: EUR 95 774
f’f thousand) and the Italian hotels for an amount of EUR 17 575 thousand (2016: EUR 18 950 thousand).

8
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 3| December 2017

6.1. impairment

The Group perfarmed its annual impairment test in December 2017 and 2016. The Group considers the
relationship between the value of the business and its book value, among other factors, when reviewing for
indicators of impairment. As at 31 December 2017, the valuation of the hotel CGUs based on the future cash flow
was higher than the book value, in particular due to significant revaluation uplift recorded by the Group in
relation to the property plant and equipment due to change in accounting policy (refer to Note 2) . As a result
the Group has reported the impairment in Goodwill to reduce the carrying values of CGUs to theirs recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount as at 31 December 2017 was determined at the level of the CGU. The CGU were
determined as an individual hotel business. In determining recoverable amount of the CGU, the Group has used
the fair value less cost of dispasal (FVLCD) which was based on the cash flows discounted at a pre-tax rate
between 6.14% to 9.75% {2016: 4.6% t0 9.5%).

6.2. Key assumption used in value in use calculation

- Rental income growth;
Discount rate;
- Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecasted period.

Rental income growth — A yield is based on average income received from these properties in the three years
preceding the beginning of the budget period. These are increased over the budget period for anticipated
efficiency improvements. An increase of 3.75% to 5.40% was agpplied.

Discount rates — Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking
into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates, The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of
the Group and its different business units and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The
WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on
investment by the Group’s investors. The cost of deht is based on weighted average cost of the group borrowings.
Business unit specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors are evaluated
annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor in the
specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period ~ Rates are based on published industry
research. : : )

The management has performed the impairment test for all individual hotel business as at 31 December 2017
and has concluded to register an impairment related to the French hotels in Consteliation France S.A.S. for EUR
188 253 thgusand and to the Italian hotel in CU.GL.MI Spa for EUR 13 691 thousand.

44

n

i

m

m

i

"

A

1)

1A s L] T!l 193 19:

17




Ly

183

PRI VI T U 1L

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

:.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Description of valuation techniques used to determine the recoverable amount of CGUs and related key inputs to those refated recoverable amounts are sensitive are set
out in the table below:

‘Cainpanies
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

Note 7: Property, plant and equipment

The movements for the year are as follows:

{in EUR '000)

Cost or valuation

At 01 January 2016
Reclassification
Additions

Disposal

Cxchange rate dilference
At 31 December 2016
Reclassification
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Revatuation gain/{loss)
Write off

Assets held for sale
Exchange rate difference
At 31 December 2017
Depreciation and impairment
At 01 January 2016 '
Reclassification
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment

Disposal

Exchange rate difference
At 31 December 2016
Reclassification
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries
Assets held for sale
Exchange rate difference
At 31 December 2017
Net book value

At 31 December 2016
At 31 December 2017
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The disposal total net amount of EUR 1 358 761 thousand due to the disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the
London hotels for a total amount of EUR 944 871 thousand, the Italian hotels for EUR 103 368 thousand and the
French hotels for EUR 310 522 thousand as follows:

Plant,

Land and ! Construction
o machinery and Total

Building . in progress
(in EUR '000) equipment
the London hotel "' .83 566)};2 o {92431) .7 ..(68874) ... (9448
the Italian hotels - (o2362) . (200 ,'"'if?:d??-’)? "('10'3'368')"
the French hotels . -"» (30 ‘.344):.." L 041 - {5 637)‘: (310 522)
Total disposal of subsidiaries (£A79.772) ... (95473} . (83516 (1 358 761).

Construction work in progress mainly represents refurbishment work carried out on french hotels in
Constellation France S.A.S. The construction is expected to be completed in 2018.

The impairment of the year 2016 is related to the Intercontinental Barclay in Constellation Barclay US, LLC for
EUR 37 484 thousand {USD 41 491 thousand).

7.1. Reconciliation of carrying amount

: 1 Decemb
{in EUR '000) 3 Zegle.',“ er

Carrying amount™ N L 838 030

Leve! 3 revaluation gain recognised due to change in accounting policy to revaluation
mode|

664 223

Carrying amount and fair value . e 2 501 253
* The Group changed the accounting policy with respect to the measurement of property plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2017 on a prospective basis. Therefore, the carrying value of the property plant and
equipment was not measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016.

Had the group not applied the fair value model the cost and the accumulated depreciation of the property plant
and equipment would have been as below:

(in EUR '000) . . 31 December 2017

Cost C i vi 2081928
ST (24389
1838030

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying value
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

7.2, Revaluation of property plant and equipment

Fair value of the property plant and equipment was determined using income approach, i.e. the discounted cash
flows technique was applied. As at the dates of revaluation on 31 December 2017, the properties’ fair values are
based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer. A total net gain from the revaluation of the
land building and plant & machinery of EUR 534 698 thousand in 2017 was recognised in OCI (EUR 518 516
thousand for the group and EUR 16 182 thousand for NCI), including EUR 728 723 thousand gain on revaluation
and EUR 194 025 thousand net deferred tax impact. The total net loss amounting EUR 64 500 thousand was

_recognised through the income statement (refer to Note 24}.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Description of valuation techniques used to determine the fair values of property, plant and equipment and key inputs to those the related fair values are sensitive are set
out in the table below:

All assets have been evaluated on the basis that the business is closed but immediately available to open its door for business.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 8: Operating leases — Group as Lessor

During 2017, the Group sold the following beneficial ownership of investment properties:

- Fleet Street Investments Il Limited ; beneficial ownership of an investment property located at
Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street, London EC4 and 131, 132, 134 to 139 {inclusive} and 141 Fleet
Street and Daniel House, 140 Fleet Street, London EC4.

- Helens RE I, Helens RE I, Helens RE Ili and Helens RE {V; beneficial owners of the four supermarket deals
in Greece.

- Constellation OWS Properties inc, ; beneficial owner of an investment property located One Wall Street,
New York, United States of America.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group does not own any investment property.

Future minimum rentals receivable/payable under the operating lease(s) are as follows:

(in EUR '0C0) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Within 1 year
After 1 year, but no more than S years

More than 5 years

Total lease at end of year . ) o - B 229120

Note 9: Investment properties

As described in Note 8, the Group sold the beneficial ownership of investment properties during the year and
does not own any investment property as at 31 December 2017.

The movements for the year are as follows:

{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

At 01 January
Forex exchange loss
Disposal of subsidiaries

on 1126989
(29 492y

T 108927.

Capital expenditure
Fair value loss recognized during the year (73988
At 31 December one L1128 436

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's investment properties consisted of 6 properties in UK, USA and Europe.
The Group determines that the investment properties consist of following sub classes of assets based on the
nature, characteristic and risk of each property:
e office
" e retail/mixed use

Description of location, type and size of the investment properties:
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Companles -~ _Locatlon

Fleet Street Investments. l .
-Limited - : :

:He'!’%DSRE-':a [ . ,'Allmos, Attaca, Greece
HelensREI 1 -+
‘HelensRE I -

. Fleet Street, =£o'hd‘o‘n- UK"‘

HelensREIV: ;- "

I SN Thessalon.'k Greece
“Constéilation. OWS:Propetiss, °

o Tombazu Street, Thessalomkt, Greece-
e st Attica; 4Greece "
) Mumcupallt of Pavlos. Melas, e Reta’i!:rcbrﬁﬁxé':r.éigi,_ﬂ '

i "Wall;Stregt.qne,: New:Ygrk,::USA:? o

. Type

. Offlce property

B _.Retaxl :
- Retail commel‘Cla|; S
. Retailcommercial, - -

_-',u"l\"/‘ti‘x'é'clius'e-‘j R

Size

B ';:34 423 sqm'

:14 856 sqm

" 20,603 sqm

£ 95,62asEm

As at 31 December 2016, the net fair value of the properties is based on valuations performed by iLL, an
accredited independent Real Estate Appraisers who are specialist in valuing these types of investment properties.
Avaluation madel is in accordance with the recommendation of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).
The valuation models in accordance with those recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee have been applied and are consistent with the principles in IFRS 13.

As set outin Note 3, in arriving at the estimates of the market value, the valuers have not only relied on historical
transactional comparable but also used their market knowledge and professional judgment to arrive at such

values.

As at 31 December 2017, no valuation of property was performed as the Group sold its investment properties.

The following table shows an analysis of incomes and expenses from investment property.

For the year ended
{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017
Rental income derived from investment properties ' : 24788 L

Reversal on bad debt allowance on investment properties

Direct operating expenses (including repair and :
maintenance) generating rental income :

Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair : v
value ‘

52

10052

" iises0):

For the year ended
31 December 2016

T 30532

19,811 sqm:
8,728 sqm.

L1 aw: nm: .- e el
- N S ST l_l.—._l—.l_‘.___

m

.
-
U
b
= 1
4

2

o~

o

am;

3

¥

£




m i‘t (7

b33

B

L&

fmi

Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Reconciliation of fair value

Office properties Retail/mixed use

{in EUR '000) properties Total

At 01 January 2016 ..o ...~ 620083° - - . 706906 . . 1126989
Foreign exchange (losses)/gain R (55:697) *. T 26_{;2'051 29'492)
L R avkegn 10927,

73 ee)
L1z,
L. {108343)
L 82308
w309

Capital expenditures Sl T s
Revaluation gain recognized in profit or Joss .
At 31 December 2016

814692
S 7353

Foreign exchange losses

Capital expenditures
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

The disposal of subsidiaries is composed of the London investment property for a total amount of EUR 306 754
thousand, the Greek investment property for EUR 64 800 thousand and the American investment property for
EUR 734 845 thousand as follows: ’

Retail/mixed use
properties
the London investment property : (306754). Gl f o ' - (306754):
L raesas).
o (105399).

(in EUR 000} Office properties Total

the Greek investment properties

the American investment property

Total disposal of subsidiaries U (SQG'ISR)'.i R L
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to reach the fair value of the investment properties:

. EUR6Q0

16.31%
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Using the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumption regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s fife including an exit or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a market derived discount rate is applied to
establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

Significant increase (decreases) in estimated rental value would result in a significant higher (lower} fair value of
the property.

Generally, a change in assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar
change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield).

Fair value hierarchy
Refer to note 20.8 for the analysis of the fair values Investment properties recognised in the statement of

financial position by level of the fair values measurement hierarchy.

Note 10: Investment in associates and joint ventures

The movements for the year are as follows:

Copley Plaza Sole Property Kopaszi Gat
Member LLC Market Kft Kft

TOTAL

{in EUR '000)

At 01 January 2016

Balance at acquisition date

Total comprehensive income for the
vear {continuing operation}

At 31 December 2016

Balance at acquisition date

Total comprehensive income for the

3o

year (continuing operation) - 37
Disposal of subsidiary 7 (9894)
At 31 December 2017 " 25 866

The joint venture requires the parent’s consent to distribute its profits. The parent does not foresee giving such
consent at the reporting date.

The joint venture has no contingent liabilities and no capital commitments as at 31 December 2017.

The Group has made the following acquisitions during the year 2017:

Company: et e U T g Acaulred
Copley:Plaza SoleMembertlC " -7 7 7 Hotel - LT 14412720170 U819
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Through its subsidiary Consteliation US Hotels Holding S.A., the Group has acquired a 51% interest in Copley Plaza
Sole Member LLC, which owns the Fairmont Copley Plaza Hotel located in Boston, Massachusetts, USA. The
Group jointly control this entity and has been accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of this entity, and the income statement
impact of the two entities disposed during the year:

{in EUR '000) Copley Piaza Sole Property Kopaszi Gat TOTAL
Member LLC Market Kft Kft

Current assets S 9280 e - . .:9260
Non-cucrent assets Driuleo145582 - Lo 1a5 58
Current inbilitics T e e T T " idet
Non-current liabilities R - :. *.-'199.089)
Equity L 50139
Group's carrying amount of the : '_'::'1. 25866

investment

Revenue

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Fair value of investment property
Finance (costs)/income

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year {continuing
operations) ’ :
Total comprehensive income for the L
year (continuing operation) ;
Group's share of profit for the year

The Group made the following acquisitions during the year 2016:

company .t . oo Type 7T 5. AcquisitioniDate . . % acquired:
Property Matketkit = T Rewit e UL agjoafaots - a0%
KopasziGatRft " " oRetail oLt 19/04/2016,0 Y 40%

As the two companies were acquired during 2016, they are proportionally consolidated following the equity
accounted method, and therefore there is no business combination as at 31 December 2016.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

;{ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

) 3 Through its subsidiary Constellation Hungary S.A., the Group acquired a 40% interest in Property Market Kft. And
Kopaszi Gat Kft., which are involved in mixed used real estate business in Hungary. The Group’s interest in those
two entities were accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following

Equity

table illustrates the summarised financial information as at 31 December 2016 of those two entities:
e (in EUR '000}) Property Kopaszi Gat
A Market Kft Kft ToTAL
w3 L.
i, Current assets . .5.783.
Non-current assets 7:836 "
Mi Current liabilities 6541)
Non-current liabilities 52:457)

| 24591

j Group's carrying amount of the investment 9836 9888

vg Revenue 2643

. Cost of sates . (2994}
Administrative expenses B (404)

‘! Fair value of investment property
Finance (costs)/income
Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year (continuing operations)

?'.‘! Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing
operation)
3 Group's share of profit for the year
The Group sold thesé two entities during 2017.
Note 11: Other non-current financial assets
A 11.1.  Held to maturity investments

During the year 2015, CHH Finance S.A., a subsidiary of the Company, invested in bonds issued by a French Group
named LOV Group for a consideration of EUR 270 707 thousand with a maturity date in 2022, The investment
consists in four different bonds, namely: ‘ )

ad aas
.

66 837 Senior Tranche A Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 66 837 thousand;

* 24 863 Senior Tranche B Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 24 863 thousand;
90 231 Mezzanine Notes FINANCIERE LOV for a total amount of EUR 90 231 thousand (reimbursed in
2016);

e 88 776 Mezzanine Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 88 776 thousand.

Y
*

o

-~ As of 31 December 2017, an amortization of the Senior Tranche A Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION amounting to

5 EUR 4 300 thousand {2016: EUR 4 100 thousand)} and an amortization of the Senior Tranche B Notes LOV HOTEL

w2 COLLECTION amounting to EUR 712 thousand {2016: EUR 712 thousand) were received, thus leaving a net
amount of the complete investment of EUR 168 602 thousand {EUR 173 614 thousand in 2016).
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

An impairment test was performed on these bonds and it was concluded that impairment does not exist. indeed,
as disclosed in note 29 of these consolidated financial statements, the bonds have been early and fully repaid as
of the 11 Aprit 2018. The amount fully repaid amounts to EUR 174 756 thousand {principal & accrued interest).
Based on the repayment it has been concluded that the investment is fully recoverable and that no signs of
impairment have been identified.

As the bonds have been repaid subsequent to 31 December 2017 for the amount of EUR 174 756 thousand,
therefore, the fair value of the bonds amounts to EUR 174 756 thousand (EUR 207 972 thousand in 2016).

11.2.  Loans and receivables

{(in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Loan notes!? ‘ © T 197865+
Loan to pacific Aviation Limited o D

Smallwell Properties Limited
Ostan dubh Linn Teoranta Limited
Loan to Patrick Mc Kitlen!¥

Loan to AAC Copley Partners LLC!Y
CACIB Equity Cure account' L vl el
Other ST ke

Total Loans and receivables S T 276589 L 28878%
{in EUR '000Q) . 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Bonds loan P caese0z. UL c173614
Total financial assets held to maturity EOUM 158602 e 173618
Other non-current financial assets e aasiaaytie oo 459366

() patrick Mc Killen is the former shareholder of Coroin Ltd. Following the acquisition of Séléné Sarl in 2015, the
Group has acquired also the loans bearing interests of 3% to the Irish companies for an amount of EUR 13 950
thousand and Patrick Mc Killen for an amount of EUR 37 656 thousand. During the period 2017, Patrick Mc Killen
took over the loans to the lrish companies increasing the Group receivable from Patrick Mc Kitlen to EUR 51 545
thousand as at 31 December 2017. The Maturity date is as of 2021. No amount has been received in 2017.

2 The loan notes for an amount of EUR 197 865 thousand {USD 237 300 thousand) are receivable from IHG with
an expected repayment when IHG divest and with a variable interest rate of 1.83%.

) The amount of EUR 6 000 thousand was related to a secured deposit account at an European bank in Société
des Hotels Intercontinental France 5.A.S..

¥ AAC Copley Partners LLC is the joint member of the joint venture Copley Plaza Sole Member LLC.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

Note 12: Trade and other receivables

The trade and other receivables can be detailed as follows:

(in EUR '000}

Trade receivables
Impairment of trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables {net})

31 December
2017

.. 28367 .

R 77

e

Past-dues for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 can be detailed as follow:

Neither past
due nor
Total impaired

EUR 000 EUR 000
At31Dec.2016 @~ - 42597 - . 14958,
At31Dec.2017 .7 27795 0 1
*dd: due day

Variation of the impairment on trade receivables:

{in EUR '000)

At 01 January 2016

. Charge for the year
Utilized
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 December 2016
Charge for the year
Utilized
Unused amounts reversed
Disposal of subsidiaries

* Exchange difference
At 31 December 2017

€UR 000

15010 ¢

-~

<30 dd* 30-60 dd* 61-90 dd*
EUR 000 EUR 000
- 12:939. 07607 5. 105L

700:5, 292

tndividually
impaired

Collectively
impaired

... 10380

(10063,
» .46

359

13 :' ":;' '1. : ”(10

31 December
2016

. 53398
L (1ogory
UL a2is97

91-120 dd* > 120 dd*
EUR 000 EUR COO
S 952 L T

Total

(29)
052)
L (308
. 572

From April 2015, the single tenant, of the four Carrefour hypermarkets owned by Helens RE | Commercial
Investments, Helens RE Il Commercial Investments, Helens RE i Commercial investments, and Helens RE IV
Commercial Investments {four undertakings of Helens RE S.A., a subsidiary of the Company), Marinopoulos S.A.,
started experiencing financial difficulties and did not pay the contractual rent and an impairment amounting EUR
10052 thousind was recorded as this situation was deemed by the Directors of the Company to potentially have
an impact on the recoverability of outstanding rent hence a provision for doubtful was made as of 31 December
2015. In 2016, no reversal of the pravision for doubtful debts was made the group is still uncertain over the final
outcome of the restructuring agreement — Transfer of business {refer Note 8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.) |
As at 31 December 2017

In 2016, the Group entered into new lease agreement with a new customer Sklaventis S.A and also has entered
into agreement to repay the outstanding rent of Marinopoulos S.A. (refer Note 8). The group has collected first
reimbursement in February 2017 in accordance with the agreement.

in 2017, the tenant of the four Greek investment properties paid the rents on time. Thus, the impairmeat
accumulated on trade receivables on regards of the four Carrefour hypermarkets amounting to EUR 10052
thousand have been reversed during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of impairment on trade receivables amounts to EUR 572 thousand and is

related to several insignificant bad debtors in Constellation Hotels France $.A.S. and CU.GLMI Spa.

Note 13: Other current assets

The other assets are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

(in EUR '000)

Receivable from Hyatt International (guarantee margin) !
Shareholders receivable

Ultimate shareholders advance ¥

VAT and other tax

Interest on bonds (refer to Note 11)

Receivable from other related parties !

Prepayments (hotel business) ¥

Prepayments (investment property) "’

Other® )

Total trade and other receivable

{1 The Group has received a guarantee from Hyatt related to the hotel in France for a total of 7 years in order to
guarantee the percentage of occupation. Subject to the provisions set up in the Portfolio Guarantee Agreement
dated 31 january 2013 between the Group and Hyatt International (Europe, Africa, Middle East) LLC, an
indemnity related to the fourth quarter of the financial year 2016 is due to the Group. The current position

amounts to EUR 18 418 thousand (2016: EUR 19 990 thousand), which has been paid subsequent to year end (11

January 2018).

@ As of 31 December 2017, the Shareholders advance includes the amount of EUR 942 070 thousand
corresponding to USD 1 129 824 thousand. This amount represents the claim which Regis Investment S.A. held
against Prime Capital S.A. for the sale of all the shares, capital contributions and advances Regis Investment S.A.
held in Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A.. As per the Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017, its
underlying Amendment Agreement dated 18 November 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31
December 2017, Regis Investment 5.A. assigned this claim to the Group as part of payment of the consideration
for the investments which Regis Investment S.A. acquired from the Group during 2017.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

¥ The advances to Ultimate shareholders {hereinafter ‘UBOs’) represents an amount paid to them in prior years.
According to the assignment agreement entered by the Group on 2 May 2016, the outstanding liability to Séléné
S.ar.l., an affiliated subsidiary company of Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd S.C.A. amounts as of 31 December
2017 to EUR 91,670 thousand (2016: LUR 247 612 thousand). The UBO has an outstanding liability of EUR 89 837
thousand as of 31 December 2017 payable to Séléné S.ar.l. and it was agreed that UBO will pay all its autstanding
balance to the Group and the Group will pay the equivalent amount to the Séléné S.ar.l. During the year, the
Group has received an amount of EUR 150 209 thousand (2016: EUR 46 845 thousand) from the UBOs and has
paid the equivalent amount to Séléné S.ar.l..

@ As at 31 December 2017, VAT and other tax is composed of tax receivables in France.

1 Ag at 31 December 2017, receivable from other related parties represents an amount paid to the UBO of the
previous shareholder Régis Investment Ltd in prior years. According to the assignment agreement entered by the
Group on 2 May 2016, the UBQ of Régis Investment Ltd has an outstanding liability of EUR 83 837 thousand as
of 31 December 2017 payable to Séléné S.ar.l., an affiliated subsidiary company of Constellation Hotels Holding
Ltd 5.C.A,, and it was agreed that UBO will pay all its outstanding balance to the Group and the Group will pay
the equivalent amount to the Séléné S.ar.l..

® As at 31 December 2017, prepayments (hotel business) is mainly composed of the prepayments by the
American hotels for an amount EUR 3 551 thousand, by the London hotels for an amount of EUR 2 270 thousand
and by the French hotels for an amount of EUR 1 524 thousand.

1n 2017, the Group sold the all investment properties and does not own any investment property, therefore
no prepayments {investment property} is identified as at 31 December 2017.

81 0ther is mainly composed of the prepayment related to the renovation work of the 3 hotels in portfolio of
Constellation France S.A.S. in France for an amount of EUR 12 744 thousand {2016: EUR 25 272 thousand).

Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents

(in EUR *000)} 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Cash at banks and on hand ' 77645 o ".'," 201 703

Ll 2in284,

Restricted cash

Total cash and cash equivalents

The restricted cash is located in USA for a total amount of USO 12 784 thousand in 2017 {Constellation Barclay
US, LLC) and USD 10 100 thousand in 2016 (Constellation Barclay US, LLC and Consteltation OWS Corporation
inc.). The remaining amount is located in different European subsidiaries. This cash has been restricted for
insurance and taxes reserves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 15: Issued capital and reserves

15.1.  Issued share capital

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
tssued shares of EUR 100 each . 1660:310shares. . . 1660310 shares .
fssued capital - (in EUR '000) ST 166088 s L T T 166038

On 26 March 2012 (incorporation date) the Company issued capital for an amount of EUR 31 thousand
represented by 310 shares with a par value of EUR 100 each. The initial share capital was fully subscribed and
paid in. On 21 December 2012, the Company increased its share capital by an amount of EUR 400 000 thousand
by issuing 4 000 thousand new shares with a par value of EUR 100 each, having the same rights and privileges as
the existing shares. All these new shares have been subscribed and fully paid up.

On 31 December 2013, the Company decreased its share capital by an amount of EUR 234 000 thousand by
cancelling 2 340 thousand shares and reimbursed an amount of EUR 234 000 thousand to the shareholders. Also
at the date the Company was transformed from a Société Anonyme to a Société en Commandite par Actions with
two classes of ordinary shares (A and B). The rights attached to the classes of shares are similar.

On 31 December 2013, the authorized and issued share capital amounts to EUR 166 031 thousand represented
by 830 154 Ordinary A shares, 830 154 Ordinary B shares and 2 unlimited shares with a nominal value of EUR
100 each. The unlimited shares are held by the General Partner of the Company. The number of authorised and
issued shares movedfrom 4 031 000 shares as at 31 December 2012 to 1 660 310 shares as at 31 December 2013
as described above.

During the year 2017 and 2016, no changes incurred in respect to the Company’s share Capital.
15.2.  Capital contribution without issue of shares

During the year 2017, the shareholders of the Company decided to make several capital contributions without
issuing shares in order to finance the different projects of the Company (EUR 125 408 thousand). Further, they
decided as well to transfer and to reimburse several capital contributions as part of the restructuring
(EUR 387 422 thousand). As of 31 December 2017, the capital contributions amount to EUR 1 135 191 thousand
{2016: 1 397 205 thousand).

Ouring the year 2016, the capital contributions made by the shareholders amounted to EUR 114 million.
15.3.  Legalreserve

The Company is required to allocate a minimum of 3% of its annual net income to a legal reserve, until this
reserve equals 10% of the subscribed share capital. This reserve for an amount EUR 6§76 thousand may not be
distributed. Due to the fact that the Company made a loss in 2016 no further allocation has been done.

15.4.  Other reserves

The other reserves of the group are composed of:
e Reserves for employee benefit plans
¢ Hedge accounting reserve
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 16: Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

16.1.  Summary of interest-bearing loans and borrowings

{in EUR '000} 31 Dec. 2017
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - non current

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings =2=.205;4370.‘_‘ '
Accrued interests capitalised on the loan N 145612
Total non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 2351082

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — current
Current accounts with REGIS INVESTMENT S.A. Lol
Current portion of PRIME CAPITAL S.A. loans g
Current accounts with PRIME CAPITAL S.A (Y
Accrued interests on banks loans

Ultimate shareholders

Current portion of bank loan

Bank overdraft

Total of current borrowings

U The current accounts with the shareholder PRIME CAPITAL-S.A. as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

{in EUR '000) 31 Dec. 2017

Current, accounts

Take-over of current accounts with REGIS INVESTMENT S.A. i 269245,
Remaining amount of the sale consideration price (61304)
Repayment to previous Ultimate shareholder _(-10‘:25?)’--:
Total current accounts with PRIME CAPITAL S.A.- ‘ - 59244
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Coastellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

16.2.  Shareholders and third parties loans

Nominal Accrued

value in interests as

original at 31 Dec.
curr. 2017

{in EUR '000) Interest rate Maturity Curr, 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016

Shareholders and third parties loans
Regis Investment SA. - . #:31/32/2023: -EWR. . 117060 . - .. .- 124500
prmeCaptals A L CEatuoaen R 70D sesr iwsto s

2 ane Capatal S .>
Reg»s Investment S

ane Cap;tal s: A
“Regis lnveétrh nt: S;A..,

75% :
275% margn‘ o
2:75%: -margm-;".
_.3 00% - mar.gl‘
* margi
: : ,':.00% - margm-:, +3
3 00% . margm -.-30/

0 7 49 ,margmsf:‘.,': 2/2024
L ':', 900%- ma;’gm':j -29/09/20

: 700% ':‘mérgfnf 027
- 8 00% margm . 14/12/7022

lntercontme tal.
Hotels Corporate

141534 1412690 1538 066

Less current portion
Prime Capital SiA. - "%,

S 3% : 01/05/2018 ) GBP 139105 . Lo Ll "(132‘-_‘--750):‘:1 Lo -
3% T 01/05/2018" . GBP.1.: 1391061 SUTAs2Ts0E -
- (265 500) -
Total shareholders and third parties loans — Non current 141534 1147190 1538 066
2.5% + variable based on the performance of the Company
** Upon agreement between Intercontinental Hotels Corporation and Constellation Hotels Holding S.C.A.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

16.2.1. Non-current portion of shargholders and third parties loans

On 20 March 2017 an additional drawdown of EUR 15 000 thousand has been done by Prime Capital S.A. to its
income Sharing Loan maturing at 31 December 2023, leaving the toan as of 31 December 2017 at an amount of
EUR 139 500 thousand (2016: EUR 124 500 thousand).

As per Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017,
Prime Capital S.A. has acquired all the long term loans from Regis investment S.A. except for the one maturing
at 26 February 2024, which has been transferred together with the one maturing at the same date and provided
by Prime Capital S.A. to Swanisland S.A..

16.2.2. Current portion of shareholders and third parties loans - current

As per Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017,
Prime Capital S.A. has acquired all the short term payables from Regis Investment S.A., excopt the ope for
financing Canstellation Hungary S.A., which has been transferred together with the one provided by Prime
Capital S.A. for financing Constellation Hungary S.A. to Swan Island S.A..
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

16.3. Bankloans

Nominal Accrued
(in EUR . valueg in interests as
000) Interest rate Maturity Curr. original at 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016

curr. 2017

Bank loans

floating rate of GBP LIBOR:+ :
L margm:{.,' .

- toand¥

024 EUR- 350000  ;41.~4.;3646‘?‘
9. EUR. 650000 L

EUR!BOR 3M ¥ margm 3
EURIBOR +'marg|n:

27/10/2022._.?f GBP - 3864
30/09/2019. EUR" " 5
Ao/Agja0tT US ADO0. . L ot L - 435409

;.f_f.zo/os/zozo-_' R 138000 -
i 31/03/2019

‘Loanta* ;5 UBOR+margm 31/03/2019: - U

4 848 1081551 2610 237

Less current portion
~f|-'atmg rate ofGBP uaon O

.Lﬁoa'n‘if

RCED
LT asiedsy 6 280)
(770} (23 271) (621 240)
Total bank loans — Non current 4078 1058 280 1988997

!nQﬁQné_l::sWap.

Toandd .o . Vafiable. Ondemand EUR i 16256

TOTAL interest-bearing loans and borrowings - non current Y _’_i&$'§12‘. 2205470 "7 3527063

* Disposal of subsidiaries

Bank loan 1, contracted by Fleet Street Investments il Ltd, had maturity date of 05/07/2017 and accordingly
classified as current in 2016 period. During 2017, Fleet Street Investments I1l Ltd was disposed and the Group has
transferred the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protoco! dated 31 December
2017.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Bank loan 7, with a maturity date of 30/09/2019, isv contracted by Constellation Hotels italy Srl. During 2017,
Constellation Hotels Italy Srl. was disposed and the Group has transferred the bank loans contracted by the
subsidiary according to the Closing Protacol dated 31 December 2017.

Bank loan 9, contracted by Constellation OWS Properties, Inc. had a maturity date of 27/04/2017 and was
therefore classified in current. Buring 2017, Constellation OWS Properties, Inc. was dispased and the Group has
transferred the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December
2017.

Bank loan 10, with a maturity date of 01/05/2018, is contracted by Constellation Hotel (Opco) UK S.A.. During
2017, Constellation Hotel {Opco) UK S.A. was disposed and the Group has transferred the bank loans contracted
by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017.

8ank loan 11, with a maturity date of 20/05/2020, is contracted by Société des Hotels Intercontinental France
S.A.S.. During 2017, Société des Hotels Intercontinental Fronce S.A.S. was disposcd and the Group has transferred
the bank loans contracted by the subsidiary according to the Closing Protocol dated 31 December 2017.

16.3.2, Current portion of bank loans
The fair values of the borrowings are apbroximate equal to their carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no bank overdraft.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank overdraft classified in short-term loan for an amount of EUR 198
thousand at a commercial bank in Europe and is repayable on demand

16.3.2.  Non-current portion of bank toans

**In 2017, Constellation Barclay US, LLC refinanced the three loans contracted (refer to loans 4, 8 and 12} and
entered into a new Bank Mortgage with a commercial bank in Europe for an amount of USD 290 000 thousand
with a maturity date as of 30/03/2019 (refer to loan 14).

In 2017, the loan initially contracted by Coroin Ltd amouting to GBP 788 560 thousand was renegotiated with the
bank as Coroin Ltd was disposed during the year. Séléné Holding Ltd took over a part of the initial loan for an
amount of GBP 386 410 thousand, keeping the characteristic of the initial loan: a maturity date as of 27/10/2022
and an interest rate of 3.50%. (refer to loan 6)

Bank loan pledges

The Company and its subsidiary, CHH Finance S.A., respectively pledged the former’s subscribed shares of the
latter amounting to EUR 31 000 and the fatter’s bank account as well as “fiducie-sGreté” over its subscribed Notes
(refer to Note 11}, in favour of Bank in its capacity as lender (refer to loan 5). Ouring the year the Group repaid
total amount of EUR 12 346 thousand. The Group used the proceeds of the interest payment of all the LHC Notes
far an amount of EUR 7 334 thousand to reimburse the existing bank facility and an annual amortization of EUR
5 012 thousand.

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement all the shares issued by Constellation Hoteis France $.A.S. are pledged in
favour of the banks (refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France $.A.S. entered into a conventional mortgage for an amount of EUR 275 000 thousand
in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR 110 000 thousand in favour of another bank in their capacity as
lenders. Extreme effective date is 31 January 2021 {refer to loan 2).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Constetlation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a conventional mortgage for an amount of EUR 27 500 thousand
in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR 11 000 thousand in favour of another bank in their capacity as
hedging bank. Extreme effective date is 31 January 2021 (refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a conventional mortgage (as security) for an amount of EUR 14
850 thousand in favour of bank and for an amount of EUR S 940 thousand in favour of another bank. Extreme
effective date is 31 January 2021 (refer to loan 2)

Further, Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a complementary mortgage as security for the payment
of the interest due under the Facility {refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered as well into a first ranking pledge of the business in favour of bank in
its capacity as lender, as agent and as hedging bank and in favour of another bank in its capacity as lender and
as hedging bank (refer to loan 2).

Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. pledged all its bank accounts and receivables and assigned the professional
receivables as a security (refer Lo loan 2).

CU.G1.MI. SpA renegotiated its Facility with several banks for 3 total amount of EUR 65 000 thousand in 2016.
This loan is secured by means of a mortgage on the owned property and by pledging 100% of the shares in favour
of the Lenders (refer to loan 3).

Société des Hotels InterContinental France {SHIF) S.A.S. had pledged all of its issued shares in favour of bank in
its capacity as lender. The pledged issued share capital of SHIF amounted to EUR 115 112 (refer to loan 11).
During 2017, Société des Hotels Intercontinental France S.A.S, was disposed, conseguently, the Group has been
released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding pledged in favour of a
bank, all the present and future rights, titles, interests and benefits in to and under the Shares and Distributions
(i.e. all rights, titles, interests and benefits of Constellation Hotels Holding in respect of any dividend, bonus
shares or any type of distribution, return or right in respect of any of the shares of Constellation Hotel UK S.A.
{whether by way of bonus, conversion, disposition, exchange, option, preference, redemption, sale substitution
or otherwise) (refer to loan 10). During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. was disposed, consequently, the Group
has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to a share pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding and Constellation Hotel
UK S.A. pledged in favour of a bank, all the present and future rights, titles, interests and benefits in to and under
the Shares and Distributions (i.e. all rights, titles, interests and benefits of Constellation Hotels Holding in respect
of any dividend, bonus shares or any type of distribution, return or right in respect of any of the shares of
Constellation Hotel (OpCo) UK S.A. (whether by way of bonus, conversion, disposition, exchange, option,
preference, redemption, sale substitution or otherwise) {refer to loan 10). During 2017, Consteilation Hotel UK
S.A. was disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. pledged in favour of
a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against Constellation Hotel (OpCo) UK S.A. under the
intercompany Loan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, all income deriving there from, payments
made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof and rights, title and benefits in
relation thereto (refer to loan 10).Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation
Hotel (OpCo) UK S.A. pledged in favour of a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against
Constellation Hotel UK S.A. under the Intercompany Loan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, ali
income deriving there from, payments made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof
and rights, title and benefits in relation thereto (refer toloan 10). During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A. was
disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to a receivables pledge agreement dated 1 May 2013, Constellation Hotels Holding pledged in favour
of a bank, all the present and future claims it has or will have against Consteilation Hotel UK S.A. and Constellation
Hotel {OpCo) UK S.A, under the Intercompany Laan Agreements, including, for the avoidance of doubt, all income
deriving there from, payments made or to be made in respect thereof, interest thereon, proceeds thereof and
rights, title and benefits in relation thereto (refer to loan 10). During 2017, Constellation Hotel UK S.A, was
disposed, consequently, the Group has been released from all its pledge assets as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to the Term Loan and Security Agreement dated 31 March 2014, the indirect undertaking of
Constelfation Barclay UK Limited i.e. 111 East 48th Street Holdings, LLC (Delaware, USA) pledged in favour of a
bank, as collateral, all right, title, and interest of pledger in and to the followings: (i} Interest Rate Cap Agreement,
(ii) all payments, distributions, disbursements due to be delivered to pledger in relation to Interest Rate Cap
Agreement, {iii) all pledgers’ claims, rights, powers, privileges, autharity, options, security interests, liens and
remedies, if any, under interest Rate Cap Agreement, including all accessions and addition to, replacements,
products and proceeds of any of the foregoing (refer toloan 8}.

In reference to the loan 14, the Term Loan and Security Agreement are still the same as before refinancing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 17: Derivative financial instruments

The derivatives financial instrument can be described as follows:

{in EUR ‘C0Q) ) fair value at Impact on 31/12/2017 Impact on 31/12/2016
Total
i il Equit: Profi i Profi
% lii’;:’:;“e Currency _Nominaiin Startdate  End date swap 31/12/2017 31/12/2016  changein quity rofit or Equity rofit ar

original currency

{oCy) loss {ociy loss
e s e T )
. L 1268
LM
© 333

30/09/2018"

Hiabilities

N/A
N/A

Assets

Net CFearC TUassT T2aE7 o s97

* Entities sold

The derivative financial instruments assets are inciuded in other non-current assets.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

17.1.  Gain and loss on derivatives

{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
fair value at the beginning of the year R (2:125) - (25190)
Fair value at the end of the year without taxes B (17527) N {22°125)-
Exchange difference S 19 T " (205)-

Total gains on derivative financial instruments for the year : 4611 o s ZBGO
ey e
R
BN A (S

Total (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments acquired

Total gains on derivative financial instruments disposed

17.2. Use of the derivatives

The Group uses an interest rate swap to manage its interest rate risk exposure. The Group’s principal objective
in holding or issuing derivatives is to manage interests rate risk related to its liabilities. The operations of the
Group are subject to the risk of interest rate risk fluctuations of the loan entered into with the Bank in 2017 and
the previous years.

17.3. Cash flow hedge

The fair value adjustment is net of tax in the OCt for an amount of EUR 2 041 thousand {2016: EUR 2 467
thousand). .

Fleet Street Investments Ltd I} has entered into a swap agreement with a commercial bank in Europe (the "Swap
Counterparty”) to effectively swap the variable rate on its bank loan for a fixed rate of 1.435% per annum on 21
May 2012. The Group receives interest from the Swap Counterparty at a variable rate of 3-month GBP Libor-cap.
The swap terminated on S july 2017 which matches the maturity of the bank loan the Group entered into with a
commercial bank in Europe.

During 2017, Fleet Street Investments HI Ltd was disposed and the Group does not support bank loans and swap
instruments contracted by the subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2017, the swap rate agreement contracted by Société des Hotels Intercontinental France
S.A.S, with a maturity date of 20/05/2020, is not supported by the Group as Société des Hotels Intercontinental
France S.A.S. was disposed and the Group does not support bank loans and swap instruments contracted by the
subsidiary.

In 2017, Constellation Hotels France S.A.S. entered into a swap agreement with two commercial banks in Europe.
The swap terminates on 5 July 2024, which matches the maturity of the bank loans.

The variation of the fair vaiue of the interest rate swap of EUR 4 598 thousand has been recognised in financial
cost and offset with a similar gain on the bank borrowings (2016: EUR 3 066 thousand).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Derivatives are measured at fair value level 2 fair value measurements {refer to note 20.8).

Note 18: Other current payables

The Other current payable breakdown is as follows:

(in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Accrued construction cost

el

Operating provision for hotel business
Accrued severance

Accrued salaries & wages

Taxes excluding income tax
Prepayments from tenants

Tenant payables and deposits

Other payables to third parties

Other accrued expenses

Total other current payables : 127300 i 107708

As at 31 December 2017, the other payables to third parties are mainly composed of EUR 37 232 thousand (GBP
33 034 thousand) payable to Fleet Street Investments Ltd Il and the consideration amounting to EUR 24 700
already received by the Group for the sale of the shares of the indirect subsidiary. in addition they include an
amount of EUR 12 660 thousand (USD 15 183 thousand) erroneously credited to the Group's bank account; this
amount was transferred to the foreseen beneficiary in early 2018.

As at 31 December 2016, the other payables to third parties is mainly composed of the loan to Col investment
the former shareholder of Séléné S.ar.l, for an amount of EUR 5 460 thousand.

Note 19: Provisions

Non-current provisions as at 31 December 2017 refer to the retirement plan in France for an amount of EUR
6 882 thousand {2016: EUR 14 074 thousand) and the UK hatel business for an amount of EUR 2 851 thousand
{2016: EUR 6 635 thousand). Current provisions amounting to EUR 4 574 thousand as at 31 December 2017
mainly refer to the retirement plan in France (2016: EUR 4 908 thousand).

Note 20: Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, shareholders
loans, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include
joans and receivables, bonds, trade and other receivables, and cash at banks and short-term deposits that derive
directly from its cperations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Groug’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarized below.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.1. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changesin market prices. Market risk comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2017 and 2016.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of the hedge instruments in place at 31 Cecember 2017.

20.2, Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

To manage its interest rate risk, the Group enters into interest rates swaps, in which the Group agrees to
exchange, at specified intervals, the differences between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by
reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These swaps are designed to hedge underlying debt
obligations. At 31 December 2017, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, 11.78% of the
Group’s borrowings are hedged (2016: 19.30%).

Since the floating rate interest are 23.54% hedged with floating to fixed interest rate swaps, there will be no
impact on profit or loss arising due to variability of interest income and expense (2016: 30.55%). However, a
change in interest rate will affect the fair value of the value of the swap and therefore will affect the profit or
loss and equity. Also, the impact of interest rate on cash deposits held by the Group is not expected to be material
on the profit or loss of the Group. ’

20.3.  Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the Group’s exposure to interest rates for interest bearing
assets and liabilities at the statement of financial position date and has been based on management’s assessment
of the possible changes in interest rates.

Had the interest rate been Ahigher (lower} of 100 basis point, the net profit and net equity would have been lower
(higher) of EUR 22 731 thousand {2016: EUR 59 270 thousand).

20.4.  Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different
currency from the Group’s presentation currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group has an opportunistic approach in relation with foreign currency exchanges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.5.  Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currencies exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives and embedded
derivatives. The impact on the Group's equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes
for all other currencies is not material.

{in EUR '000)

Percentage of change in rate Effect on GBP Effect on USD Effect on HUF

As at 31 December 2017 profit before tax profit before tax profit before tax
+20% SO0 @S078E - o sy - (10550)
-20% ' S aste .. 10850

Percentage of change in rate
As at 31 December 2016

+20%
-20%

: (53);‘ K 3107

The movement in the before tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
not designated in a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in GBP, where the
functional currency of the entity is a currency other than GBP. Although the derivatives have not been designated
in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions when they
occur.

The movement in equity arises from changes in GBP borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents} in the hedge
of net investments in GBP gperations and cash flow hedges. These movements will offset the translation of the
GBP operations’ net assets into EUR.

20.6. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily
trade receivabies) and from its finaacing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

20.6.1. Cash

Before placing cash with any bank, the Group has due consideration to both investment and credit risk. Although
most of its cash balances are held with only two European banks and an American bank, the concentration risks
are deemed insignificant given the good reputation of the two European banks.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

20.6.2. Receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each counterparty.
Given that the Group has advanced loans to its subsidiaries, the main counterparty risk lies in the inability of the
subsidiaries to pay the interest payments on a timely basis, which will be borne by the ultimate holding company.
However, as a means to mitigate this counterparty risk, the Group has arranged for the rental income earned by
the subsidiary to be deposited directly in the bank account of the Group. The interest on loans receivabies are
offset against that amount first whilst the remaining amount sits as an amount payable in the accounts of the
Group.

20.6.3. Interest rate swap

Credit risk also arises on the interest rate swap agreement entered into with a European bank. Nevertheless, the
4counterparty risk is controlled since the Group has chosen a bank with a good credit rating of Al, as issued by
Moody’s. In case of an unlikely default, the Company will he exposed to a flaating rate interest aof GRP 1IROR nn
the bank loan taken from another European bank since the purpose of the derivate financial instrument was to
swap floating interest rate with a fixed interest rate.

20.7.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations arising from its financial
liabilities as they fall due.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The
Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access
to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing
lenders. )

As the rental income is received on a quarterly basis and interest payment under bank loan agreement is made
on a quarterly basis as well, part of the liquidity risk is mitigated. Also, rental income is first restricted to the
payment of the bank foan interest and then the other expenses of the Group.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

31 December 2017
. . Less than 1 Betweenl NMorethans
{in EUR 000) Total year to 5 years years

Bank borrowings (refer Note 16) ~T081851  23271. - 764180  -294°100:
Interest on bank borrowings payable in the A o B y .
future

Shareholder loans (refer Note 16)

Interest on shareholder loans payable in the
future Sl T R
Other non-current liabilities NERNEAR 3 ¥ | SRR
Trade payables R .7 S .
Other current payables {refer Note 18) ©n71134650 . 113465
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
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31 December 2016

(in EUR '000) Total Less than 1 Between1  Morethan5
. : year to S years years
Bank borrowings (refer Note 16) 2610237 | 621240 1:031:860. - 957137
lfztleju;:st on bank borrowings payable in the 301275 659017 . ; 203;293:{. L 32080
Shareholder loans (refer Note 16) 1538065 . 0l 7267526 1270539

interest on shareholder loans payable in the
future

416406 U102

Other non-current liabilities
Trade payables
Other current payables (refer Note 18)

20.8.  Fair values

The fair value is the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is estimated using quoted market prices for similar instruments and
adjusted for differences between the quoted instrument and the instrument being valued. In certain cases,
including the loans advanced to borrowers, where there are no ready markets, various techniques have been
used to estimate the fair value of the instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision, Readers
of these financial statements are advised to use caution when using the data to evaluate the Groups financial
position or to make comparisons with other companies.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments including cash, foans issued, short-term accounts
receivables and payables, short-term and long-term borrowings is approximately equal to their fair value.

There have been no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during 2017 and 2016.
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

As at 31 December 2017

The following table gives details of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments:

(in EUR '000)

Assets
Other non-current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Liabilities

Borrawings

Debt towards shareholder
Derivatives

Trade and other payables

Carrying Fair Values Carrying Fair Values

Amount 2017 2017 Amount 2016 2016
..., 565810 . :57L96& .

RS C5 . B
L

L a9k assma
IR R SRR LT T TS

2908816 .-
(1086399

: ‘4494568 4494937
1086399 - |

2°610:237

165857 - 165857

The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

{in EUR "000)

31 December 2017 .

Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Others non-curreni assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Assets held for sale

Liabilities

Borrowings

Shareholder loans
Derivatives

Trade and qther payables

Liabilities directly associated with the
assets held for sale
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Quoted
pricas in
active
markets

(level 1)

Significant Significant
observable unabservable
inputs inputs

TOTAL

{level 2) {level 3)
O '=r3f¢i§§»ﬁzdz_
2502253
L
" 92874
a7
X q © 60607

: '}4'51;'295;_ w
. a7
e

2935757

- 1616098 i
. -188792
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017 '

{(in EUR '000) Quoted

N Significant Significant
TOTAL p:cc;‘s’;n observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
31 December 2016 (level 1) (level 2) (level 3)
Assets . tsanessT . . . 1841683
Investment properties 1 128436 R T 1128436
Others non-current assets ":" 459366 EN N -:_ 459366
Cash and cash equivalents 3 211284- s - 11284
Trade and other receivables S 42597 L - -
Liabilities L aagases . T
Shareholder loans ,f:696534§. o
Oerivatives v 22 25

Trade and other payables

‘Note 21: Disposal group held for sale

On S May 2017, the Group announced the decision of its Board of Managers to potentially sell Société Palais de
la Mediterannée, a wholly indirectly owned subsidiary. On 31 December 2017, the shareholders of the Company
approved the plan to sell. The sale of Société Palais de la Mediterannée expected to be completed within a year
from the reporting date. At 31 December 2017, Société Palais de la Mediterannée was classified as a disposal
group held for sale. Société Palais de fa Mediterannée is active in the hotel business and is the beneficial owner
of the hotel Palais de la Mediternanée in France.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Société Palais de la Mediterannée classified as held for sale as at 31

December are, as follows:

31 December

{in EUR "000) 2017

Assets

intangible assets . 9050
Property, plant and equipment . "4"4;71.75 )

Other fixed assets

Deferred tax asset .. g
Debtors 2i001
Cash and short-term deposits 4552
Assets held for sale 60:607
Liabilities

Creditors 7153
Derviatives . 48, ;

184

Deferred tax liability T 280
interest-bearing liabilities -t 35.087
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale LY. 44468
Net assets directly associated with disposal group .o 16139

@D

Immediately before the classification of Société Palais de la Mediterannée as held for sale, the recoverable
amount was estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss was identified.
Following the classification, no write-down was recognised on 5 May 2017 as the carrying amount of the disposal
group did not fall below its fair value less costs to sell. Fair value measurement disclosures are provided in Note

%Y

e

2

vl

20.

As at 31 December 2017, there Was no write-down as the carrying amount of the disposal group did not fall

below its fair value less costs to seil.
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Note 22: Income tax

The major components of incame tax expense for the years end 31 December 2017 and 2016 are:

22.1. Current income tax

(in EUR '000)

Income tox
Current income tax

Sub-total, current income tax

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Sub-total, deferred tax

income tax expense credit reported in the statement of profit
or loss

For the year ended
31 December 2017

L., sy -

R
RREEE 17 A

L aeery

For the year ended
31 December 2016

“stons

22.2.  Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Luxembourg domestic

tax rate for 2017 and 2016

{in EUR '000)

Accounting loss before income tax

At Luxehbourg’s statutory income tax rate of 27.08% (2016:
29.22%)

Difference in tax rate*
Tax-exempt income

Effect of unrecognized losses carried forward

Permanent differences

Income tax expense credit reported In the statement of profit
or loss

Effective tax rate
{(in EUR '000)

income tax expense credit

Net loss

Group effective tax rate
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For the year ended
31 December 2017

For the year ended
31 December 2017

For the year ended
31 December 2016

For the year ended
31 December 2016
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 3t December 2017

* The change in tax rate is related to the decrease in the Luxembourgish tax from 29.22% to 27.08%, the US tax
rate from 46.06% to 33.75% and to disposal of certain subsidiaries located in different jurisdictions refer to Note
4).

22.3.  Detail of the deferred tax

Deferred taxes are related to the following:

Consolidated statement of Consolidated statement of
financial position profit ar loss

For theyear For the year
{in EUR '000) 31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016 ended 31 ended 31
Dec. 2017 Dec. 2016

Timing differences for tax purposes

{20.714] -
(5793}
1161

Revaluation of tangible assets
Revaluations of investment properties to fair value

Pension

Revaluation of financial instruments at fair value
Management contract

Assets held for sale

Other

Effect of tax rate difference

@162
* 8063y

Tax loss carried forward

Deferred tax income

Net deferred tax liabilities

Reputed as assets

' Reputed as liabilities

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cufrent tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority.

Note 23: Revenue

The total revenue for the year is broken down as follows; -

For the year ended  For the year ended

fin EUR "000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Rental income S T.24788. - (T 130532
Income from hotel operations B ' 545732 T 557779
Total revenue A 570520~ .- S88311
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As at 31 December 2017

During the year 2017, the Group activities were located in United Kingdom, United States of America, France,

Greece and italy as follows:

(in EUR '000)

United Kingdom

France

Italy

United States of America
Greece

Total revenue

Note 24: Operating expense

The operating expense for the year are detailed as follows:

(in EUR '000)

Purchase of goods and services
Distribution and marketing
Administration expenses
Operating leases

Bad debt allowances (refer to Note 12}
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible assets
Impairment of intangible assets
Write-off of tangible assets
Impairment of tangible assets
impairment of receivables
insurance

Staff costs

Real estate taxes

Utilities

Repairs & maintenance

Royatties

Other

Total operating expense
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Constellation Hotels Holding Ltd SCA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 25: Financial income and expense

25.1.  Financial income

For the year ended  For the year ended

{in EUR '000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Interest and similar income* o >'1'6'-4:59.; o 25128"'63_1
Net foreign exchange gain . ._';j 102007 BRI 39921
Total financial income 118455 55784

*Interest and simitar income include the interest income on bonds {refer to Note 11} for an amount of EUR 9 256

~ thousand {2016: EUR 10 362 thousand)

25,2, Financial expense

For the yearended For the year ended

(in EUR'000) 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments

Interest on bank loan and similar expense

Interest on sharehalders loans

Other financial charges

Total financial expense R (s 08e) (168801}

Note 26: Other operating income

The other operating income is mainly composed of EUR 72 171 thousand related to the guaranty agreement
provided by Hyatt international to Constellation Hotel Holding ttd S.ar.). {2016: EUR 62 210 thousand).

Note 27: Off-Balance sheet commitments

Off-balance sheet commitments {not discounted) given at 31 December 2017 break down as follows:

(in EUR '000} ‘ ‘ 31 December 2017 31 6ecember 2016
Guarantees LT T e300000s T LT 30°000.
TOTAL FEY . wh. 300000 v el 30°000

A European bank issued upon the insteuction of the Group a guarantee of EUR 30 miflion to the banks that
provided financing to the group companies (Société du Louvre-Lafayette S.A.S., Concorde Martinez S.A.S. and
Société du Palais de la Méditerranée S.A.S.).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont. and end)
As at 31 December 2017

Note 28: Related party transactions

For the purpose of applying IAS 24, the Group has identified the following related parties:

e Al fully consolidated companies and all associated companies accounted for using the equity
method (refer to Note 4);

¢ All members of the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors and the members of their
direct families;

e All companies in which 3 member of the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors hoids

material voting rights;

»  Companies that exercises significant influence over the Group (refer to Note 4);

¢  Fully consolidated companies by a company that exercise significant influence over the Group.

e No management remuneration was paid in 2017 and 2016. A consultancy fee of EUR 2 million has
been paid to Al Mirgab capital for the year ended 31 December 2017 {2016: EUR 2 million)

All loans received from shareholders in any year and all related interest are related party transactions. {refer to
note 16).

Note 29: Subsequent events

According to the Master Transfer Agreement dated 5 May 2017 and the related Closing Protocol dated 31
December 2017, the Group undertook to Regis Investment S.A. to take all the necessary steps and actions in
order to complete the transfer of its indirect subsidiary Société du Palais de la Méditerranée by end of June 2018.
The agreed transfer price, already received by the Group amounts to EUR 24 700 thousand.

Further, on 6 April 2018 the Group acquired from Cornerstone Commercial Properties Holdings S.A., a
Luxembourg public limited liability Group, 580 932 shares representing 100% of the Luxembourg public limited .
liability Group Stellar Hotels S.A. for.a total consideration of EUR 57 993 thousand. Stellar Hotels S.A. is operating h
exclusively in hotel business. Further, at the same date the Group acquired also from Cornerstone Commercial
Properties Holdings S.A. all the related claims and liabilities regarding Stellar Hotels S.A., leaving at the end a 3
receivable from Cornerstone Commercial Properties Holdings S.A. of GBP 1 222 thousand towards the Group. i

On 11 April 2018, LOV Group proceeded to an early voluntary repayment of the outstanding Senior Tranche A
Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION, Senior Tranche 8 Notes LOV HOTEL COLLECTION and Mezzanine Notes LOV §
HOTEL COLLECTION for a total amount of EUR 174 756 thousand (principal & accrued interest). Out of those M
proceeds, CHH Finance S.A. reimbursed the entire bank facility for. a total amount of EUR 29 575 thousand s
(principal & accrued Interest). Consequently, as from that day on,\CHH Finance S.A. has been released from all
its commitments and contingencies towards the bank.

On April 11th, 2018, Constellation Surrey NY LLC, a direct subsidiary of Constellation Surrey Holding S.A., acquired .
aioan a nominal value of USD 45 000 000, initially made by CI8C Inc. to 20 East 76th Street Co LLC, and is secured
by the real property known as the Surrey Hote! located in New York.

84




